
5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA  93940        P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA  93942-0085 
831-658-5600        Fax  831-644-9560        http://www.mpwmd.net

This meeting has been noticed 
according to the Brown Act 
rules.  The Board of Directors 
meets regularly on the third 
Monday of each month, except 
in January, February.  The 
meetings begin at 7:00 PM. 

AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

Board of Directors 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

****************** 
Monday, September 16, 2019 

6:00 pm – Closed Session 
7:00 pm – Regular Meeting 

Conference Room, Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA 

Staff notes will be available on the District web site at 
http://www.mpwmd.net/who-we-are/board-of-directors/bod-meeting-agendas-calendar/ 

by 5 PM on Thursday, September 12, 2019 

The meeting will be televised on Comcast Channels 25 & 28.  Refer to broadcast schedule on page 3. 

Closed Session – 6 pm 
As permitted by Government Code Section 54956 et seq., the Board may adjourn to closed or 
executive session to consider specific matters dealing with pending or threatened litigation, 
certain personnel matters, or certain property acquisition matters.

1. Public Comment - Members of the public may address the Board on the item or items listed on the Closed
Session agenda.

2. Adjourn to Closed Session
3. Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Gov. Code 54957) – General Manager
4. Conference with Legal Counsel – Pending and Threatened Litigation (Gov. Code 54956.9 (b)) –

One Case
5. Adjourn to 7 pm Session

Regular Meeting – 7 pm 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Board of Directors 
Molly Evans, Chair – Division 3 

Alvin Edwards, Vice Chair – Division 1 
George Riley – Division 2 
Jeanne Byrne – Division 4 

Gary D. Hoffmann, P.E. – Division 5 
Mary Adams, Monterey County Board of 

Supervisors Representative 
David Potter – Mayoral Representative 

General Manager 
David J. Stoldt 

This agenda was posted at the District office at 5 Harris Court, Bldg. G 
Monterey on Friday, September 13, 2019.  Staff reports regarding these 
agenda items will be available for public review on Friday, September 13, 
2019 at the District office and at the Carmel, Carmel Valley, Monterey, 
Pacific Grove and Seaside libraries. After staff reports have been 
distributed, if additional documents are produced by the District and 
provided to a majority of the Board regarding any item on the agenda, they 
will be available at the District office during normal business hours, and 
posted on the District website at www.mpwmd.net/who-we-are/board-of-
directors/bod-meeting-agendas-calendar/.  Documents distributed at the 
meeting will be made available in the same manner. The next regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for October 21, 2019,  
7:00 pm. 

http://www.mpwmd.net/
http://www.mpwmd.net/who-we-are/board-of-directors/bod-meeting-agendas-calendar/
http://www.mpwmd.net/who-we-are/board-of-directors/bod-meeting-agendas-calendar/
http://www.mpwmd.net/who-we-are/board-of-directors/bod-meeting-agendas-calendar/


MPWMD Regular Board Meeting 
September 16, 2019 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

 
 
 

 ADDITIONS AND CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA - The Clerk of the Board will announce agenda 
corrections and proposed additions, which may be acted on by the Board as provided in Sections 54954.2 of 
the California Government Code. 

  
 ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - Anyone wishing to address the Board on Consent Calendar, Information 

Items, Closed Session items, or matters not listed on the agenda may do so only during Oral 
Communications.  Please limit your comment to three (3) minutes.  The public may comment on all other 
items at the time they are presented to the Board. 

  
 CONSENT CALENDAR - The Consent Calendar consists of routine items for which staff has prepared a 

recommendation.  Approval of the Consent Calendar ratifies the staff recommendation.  Consent Calendar 
items may be pulled for separate consideration at the request of a member of the public, or a member of the 
Board.  Following adoption of the remaining Consent Calendar items, staff will give a brief presentation on 
the pulled item.  Members of the public are requested to limit individual comment on pulled Consent Items 
to three (3) minutes.  Unless noted with double asterisks “**”, Consent Calendar items do not constitute a 
project as defined by CEQA Guidelines section 15378. 

 1. Consider Adoption of Minutes of the August 19, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
 2. Consider Approving Agreement with DeVeera Inc. for Information Technology Services 
 3. Consider Adoption of MPWMD Resolution No. 2019-15 Amending Table 2: Non-Residential 

Water Use Factors 
  
 GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 4. Status Report on California American Water Compliance with State Water Resources Control 

Board Order 2016-0016 and Seaside Groundwater Basin Adjudication Decision 
 5. Update on Development of Water Supply Projects 
  
 ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 6. Report on 6:00 pm Closed Session of the Board 
  
 DIRECTORS’ REPORTS (INCLUDING AB 1234 REPORTS ON TRIPS, CONFERENCE 

ATTENDANCE AND MEETINGS) 
 7. Oral Reports on Activities of County, Cities, Other Agencies/Committees/Associations 
   
 DISCUSSION ITEMS - Public comment will be received.  Please limit your comment to three (3) minutes per item. 
 8. Discuss Plan to Defease Mechanics Bank Loan (formerly Rabobank) 
   
 9. Supplies and Demands for Water on the Monterey Peninsula – Past and Future 
   
 PUBLIC HEARINGS – Public comment will be received.  Please limit your comment to three (3) minutes per item. 
 10. Consider Adoption of the Monterey Peninsula, Carmel Bay and South Monterey Bay 

Integrated Regional Water Management Plan Update 
  Action:  The Board will consider approval of an update to the plan originally adopted in 2014.  The 

updated plan will be a component of a grant application to the Department of Water Resources. 
   
 11. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-12 Modifying Rule 160 – Regulatory Water 

Production Targets for California American Water System (Exempt from environmental review 
per SWRCB Order Nos. 95-10 and 2016-0016, and the Seaside Basin Groundwater Basin 
adjudication decision, as amended and Section 15268 of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines, as a ministerial project; Exempt from Section 15307, Actions by Regulatory 
Agencies for Protection of Natural Resources.) 

  Action:  The Board will consider modifications to the Regulatory Water Production Targets in 
Tables XV-1, XV-2 and XV-3 of Rule 160. The modifications reflect the anticipated changes in Cal- 
Am production limits as set by the State Water Resources Control Board orders and Seaside Basin 
Adjudication decision for Water Year 2020 (Oct. 1, 2019 through Sept. 30, 2020). 

   



MPWMD Regular Board Meeting 
September 16, 2019 
Page 3 of 4 

12. Consider Adoption of October through December 2019 Quarterly Water Supply Strategy and
Budget
Action: The Board will consider approval of a proposed production strategy for the California
American Water Distribution Systems for the three-month period of October through December
2019. The strategy sets monthly goals for surface and groundwater production from various
sources within the California American Water systems.

ACTION ITEMS – Public comment will be received.  Please limit your comment to three (3) minutes per item. 
13. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-13 Authorizing an Amendment to MPWMD Board

Meeting Rule 12 – Establish Board Meeting Start Time as 6 PM
Action:  The Board will consider amending the MPWMD Board Meeting Rules to establish the time
for commencement of regular Board meetings as 6 pm.

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORTS - The public may address the Board on Information Items and 
Staff Reports during the Oral Communications portion of the meeting.  Please limit your comments to three minutes. 
14. Status Report on Measure J/Rule 19.8 Spending
15. Letters Received
16. Committee Reports
17. Monthly Allocation Report
18. Water Conservation Program Report
19. Carmel River Fishery Report for August 2019
20. Monthly Water Supply and California American Water Production Report

ADJOURNMENT 

Board Meeting Broadcast Schedule – Comcast Channels 25 & 28 
View Live Webcast at https://www.ampmedia.org/peninsula-tv/ 

Ch. 25, Mondays, 7 PM Monterey, Del Rey Oaks, Pacific Grove, Sand City, Seaside 
Ch. 25, Mondays, 7 PM Carmel, Carmel Valley, Del Rey Oaks, Monterey, Pacific Grove, 

Pebble Beach, Sand City, Seaside 
Ch. 28, Mondays, 7 PM Carmel, Carmel Valley, Del Rey Oaks, Monterey, Pacific Grove, 

Pebble Beach, Sand City, Seaside   
Ch. 28, Fridays, 9 AM Carmel, Carmel Valley, Del Rey Oaks, Monterey, Pacific Grove, 

Pebble Beach, Sand City, Seaside   

Board Meeting Schedule 
Thursday, October 3, 2019 Board Closed Session 11:00 am District conference room 
Monday, October 21, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 7:00 pm District conference room 
Tuesday, November 12, 2019 Special Meeting/ 

Workshop 
6:30 pm TBA 

Monday, November 18, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 7:00 pm District conference room 

Upon request, MPWMD will make a reasonable effort to provide written agenda materials 
in appropriate alternative formats, or disability-related modification or accommodation, 
including auxiliary aids or services to enable individuals with disabilities to participate in 
public meetings.  MPWMD will also make a reasonable effort to provide translation 
services upon request.  Please submit a written request, including your name, mailing 
address, phone number and brief description of the requested materials and preferred  

Supplemental Letter Packet

https://www.ampmedia.org/peninsula-tv/


MPWMD Regular Board Meeting 
September 16, 2019 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

 
 
 

 alternative format or auxiliary aid or service by 5:00 pm on Thursday September 12, 
2019.  Requests should be sent to the Board Secretary, MPWMD, P.O. Box 85, Monterey 
CA, 39342.  You may also fax your request to the Administrative Services Division at 
831-644-9560, or call 831-658-5600.  You may also email to arlene@mpwmd.net. 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\Sept-16-2019-Board-Mtg-Agenda.docx 

 

mailto:arlene@mpwmd.net


ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
1. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 19, 2019 REGULAR 

BOARD MEETING 
 
Meeting Date: September 16, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt, Program/ N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:    
 
Prepared By: Arlene Tavani Cost Estimate:   N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
SUMMARY:  Attached as Exhibit 1-A are draft minutes of the August 19, 2019 Regular 
meeting of the Board. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  District staff recommends approval of the minutes with adoption of 
the Consent Calendar. 

 
EXHIBIT 
1-A Draft Minutes of the August 19, 2019 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors  
  
  

 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\ConsentClndr\01\Item-1.docx 

 
 
  





 
 
 
 
 

 
5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA93940P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA93942-0085 

831-658-5600 Fax  831-644-9560http://www.mpwmd.net 
 

 
EXHIBIT 1-A 

 
DRAFT MINUTES 
Regular Meeting 

Board of Directors 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

August 19, 2019 
 

Board Chair Evans called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm in 
the MPWMD conference room.   
 

 CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Directors Present: 
Molly Evans – Chair, Division 3 
Alvin Edwards, Vice Chair, Division 1 
George Riley, Division 2 
Jeanne Byrne – Division 4 
Gary D. Hoffmann, P.E. – Division 5 
Mary Adams – Monterey County Board of Supervisors Rep. 
David Potter – Mayoral Representative 
 
Directors Absent:  None 
 
General Manager present:  David J. Stoldt 
 
District Counsel present:  Heidi Quinn 

  

   
The assembly recited the Pledge of Allegiance.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
   
Byrne offered a motion to consider items 16 and 17 
immediately after item 11, so that the public could 
participate in those items of particular interest early in the 
meeting.  The motion was seconded by Hoffmann and 
approved on a unanimous vote of 7 – 0 by Byrne, Hoffmann, 
Adams, Edwards, Evans, Potter and Riley.   Note that 
minutes of the meeting present agenda items in numerical 
order as listed on the agenda. 

 ADDITIONS AND CORRECTIONS TO 
AGENDA 

   
The following comments were directed to the Board during 
Oral Communications. (a) Ken Dursa, representing Central 
Coast Coalition of Communities for Wastewater Equity.  He 
submitted a statement that is on file at the District office and 
can be viewed on the agency’s website.  He listed reasons 
that the Coalition filed a protest to California-American 
Water Company’s application No. 19-07-004 to the 
California Public Utilities Commission.  Mr. Dursa asserted 
that rate relief is needed for low-income water and 
wastewater customers.  (b) Michael Baer, announced that 
he is no longer a rate payer in the Cal-Am system.  He 
requested that the District inform California Coastal 
Commission staff prior to November hearings on the 
desalination project, that if Cal-Am misses a milestone, 
water rationing would not be implemented in the first or 

 ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

http://www.mpwmd.net/


Draft Minutes – MPWMD Regular Board Meeting – August 19, 2019 -- 2 of 8 
 
 

 
  

second year because the community could utilize 
conservation savings.  He stressed the importance of 
providing information to Coastal Commission staff early in 
the process so that it could be included in the 
recommendation to the Commission.    
   

Byrne offered a motion to approve the Consent Calendar 
except for item 1 that was pulled for separate consideration.  
The motion was seconded by Hoffmann and approved on a 
unanimous vote of 7 – 0 by Byrne, Hoffmann, Adams, 
Edwards, Evans, Riley and Potter. 
  

 CONSENT CALENDAR 

On a motion by Riley and second of Byrne, minutes of the 
June 13, and July 15, 2019 Board meetings were adopted as 
presented.  The motion was approved on a unanimous vote 
of 7 – 0 by Riley, Byrne, Adams, Edwards, Evans, 
Hoffmann and Potter. 

 1. Consider Adoption of Minutes of the 
June 13, 2019 Special Board Meeting 
and July 15, 2019 Regular Board 
Meeting 

    
Approved expenditure of $4,650.  2. Consider Expenditure of Budgeted 

Funds for Updates to Gardensoft 
Waterwise Gardening Software 

    
Approved expenditure of $25,839.  3. Consider Expenditure to Contract for 

Completion of Annual Carmel River 
Survey 

    
Approved expenditure of: (a) $3,288.75 for CDFW LSAA 
five—year permit fee, and (b) $6,711.25 to extend 
agreement with Denise Duffy and Associates.  

 4. Consider Augmenting Expenditures for 
Permitting of a New Carmel River Fish 
Counting Weir 

    
Approved.  5. Consider Approval of 2019 Annual 

Memorandum of Agreement for 
Releases from Los Padres Reservoir 
among California American Water, 
California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife, and Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District 

    
Approved.  6. Consider Adoption of Memorandum of 

Understanding with the General Staff 
Bargaining Unit 

    
Approved.  7. Consider Adoption of Memorandum of 

Understanding with the Management 
Staff Bargaining Unit 

    
Approved.  8. Consider Adoption of Memorandum of 

Understanding with the Confidential 
Staff Bargaining Unit 

    
  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
A summary of the General Manager’s report is on file at the 
District office and can be viewed on the agency’s website.  
He reported that for the period of October 2018 through July 
2019, water production within the Monterey Peninsula 
Water Resources System was 260 acre-feet below target 

 9. Status Report on California American 
Water Compliance with State Water 
Resources Control Board Order 2016-
0016 and Seaside Groundwater Basin 
Adjudication Decision 



Draft Minutes – MPWMD Regular Board Meeting – August 19, 2019 -- 3 of 8 
 
 

 
  

production.  He noted that water production increased by 14 
acre-feet in June as compared to the same time-period in 
2018.  This was not an appreciable increase considering that 
the U.S. Open Golf Championship occurred in June. Mr. 
Stoldt reported that no rainfall was received in July and the 
total for the water year remains at 146% of the long-term 
average.   The total for unimpaired flow was 216% of the 
long-term average. 
    
  ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
Counsel Heidi Quinn reported that the Board met to discuss 
Item 3 on the Closed Session agenda.  The General Manager 
gave a report to the Board and guidance was provided.  No 
reportable action was taken. 

 10. Report on 6:30 pm Closed Session of 
the Board 

   3. Conference with Labor 
Negotiators (Gov. Code 54957.6) 

    Agency Designated Representatives: 
David Stoldt; Suresh Prasad and Mi 
Ra Park 
Employee Organization: General 
Staff and Management Bargaining 
Units Represented by United 
Public Employees of 
California/LIUNA, Local 792 
Unrepresented Employees: 
Confidential Unit 

    
  DIRECTORS’ REPORTS (INCLUDING 

AB 1234 REPORTS ON TRIPS, 
CONFERENCE ATTENDANCE AND 
MEETINGS) 

Riley reported that he attended the August 4, 2019 meeting 
of the Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 
(Watermaster), and that Mary Ann Carbone was elected as 
Vice Chair that evening.  Riley stated that the Seaside Basin 
should be considered a storage basin to be used like a dam or 
reservoir. He asked for more information on the calculation 
that allows Cal-Am and the City of Seaside to use in-lieu 
project expenditures instead of refilling the Seaside 
Groundwater Basin.   Adams expressed regret that she was 
unable to attend the Watermaster meeting.  She also 
announced that on August 27, 2019, the Monterey County 
Board of Supervisors would consider Marina Coast Water 
District’s appeal of the County’s approval of a permit for the 
desalination project pump station facility.  Edwards reported 
that he attended the July 15, 2019, meeting of the Monterey 
County Special Districts Association. Senator Bill Monning 
spoke that evening on SB2000 that would utilize the Safe 
and Affordable Drinking Water Fund to assist low income 
communities with their water infrastructure needs.  Edwards 
thanked General Manager Stoldt for doing a good job and 
speaking on water issues throughout the community.  He 
asked for a presentation from the Watermaster regarding 
what water could be injected into the basin and who could 
utilize water from the basin. 

 11. Oral Reports on Activities of County, 
Cities, Other Agencies/Committees/ 
Associations 



Draft Minutes – MPWMD Regular Board Meeting – August 19, 2019 -- 4 of 8 
 
 

 
  

   
  PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Potter made a motion to adopt Urgency Ordinance No. 184 
as presented.  The motion was seconded by Edwards and 
approved on a unanimous roll-call vote of 7 – 0 by Potter, 
Edwards, Adams, Byrne, Evans, Hoffmann and Riley. 
 
Public Comment:  John Wizard, City of Seaside, expressed 
support for adoption of the ordinance as it would, under 
some circumstances, reduce the cost for development of an 
accessory dwelling unit. 

 12. Consider Adoption of Urgency 
Ordinance No. 184 Amending the 
Requirement for Permanent Water 
Sub-Meters for Accessory Dwelling 
Units in Existing Structures 

    
  ACTION ITEMS 
Byrne offered a motion to approve an additional $15,000 for 
the contract with Right On Q Hydrology which would 
increase the not-to-exceed amount to $71,800.   The motion 
was seconded by Adams, and approved on a unanimous vote 
of 7 – 0 by Byrne, Adams, Edwards, Evans, Hoffmann, 
Potter and Riley.  No public comment was directed to the 
Board during the public comment period on this item. 

 13. Consider Approval of Additional 
Expenditure to Right On Q Hydrology 
for Technical Support for the Carmel 
River Basin Hydrologic Model 

    
Riley offered a motion to approve the Findings and an 
expenditure of $88,516.21, and to include an additional 10 
percent of the equipment purchase price to cover the cost of 
taxes and fees.  Also, prior to purchase, staff must determine 
that the equipment is NSF 61 compliant.  The motion was 
seconded by Byrne and approved on a vote of 6 – 1 by 
Riley, Byrne, Adams, Edwards, Evans and Potter.   
Hoffmann was opposed.  No public comment was directed 
to the Board during the public comment period on this item. 

 14. Consider Findings Pursuant to Public 
Contract Code Section 3400(C) and 
Expenditure for Santa Margarita 
Water Treatment Facilities 
Equipment Pre-Purchase 

    
Edwards made a motion to approve an expenditure of 
$218,822 for construction management services.  The 
motion was seconded by Potter and approved on a 
unanimous vote of 7 – 0 by Edwards, Potter, Adams, Byrne, 
Evans, Potter and Riley.   No public comment was directed 
to the Board during the public comment period on this item. 

 15. Consider Expenditure for the Santa 
Margarita Water Treatment Facilities 
Construction Management Services 

    
  DISCUSSION ITEMS 
General Manager Stoldt presented an overview of the report 
that is on file at the District office and can be viewed on the 
agency’s website.  The Board received public comment.  
Stoldt responded to questions from the Board.   
 
Public Comment:  (a) Michael Baer requested that the 
November 12, 2019, Board workshop regarding the 
feasibility study be postponed due to California Coastal 
Commission hearings scheduled for the same week.  (b) 
Kevin Tilden, Vice President of California American Water, 
recited a list of what he described as legal insufficiencies in 
the report.  Mr. Tilden offered the assistance of Cal-Am’s 
attorneys to provide the District with more information on 
the issues he raised. (c) Mary Ann Carbone, resident of 
Sand City, described the report as an excellent discussion of 
the process; however, it should have been provided six 
months earlier and it lacked the inclusion of a definition for 

 16. Report from General Manager on 
Pursuing Public Ownership of 
Monterey Public Water System 



Draft Minutes – MPWMD Regular Board Meeting – August 19, 2019 -- 5 of 8 
 
 

 
  

feasibility. (d) John Tilley, Co-Chair of the Coalition of 
Peninsula Businesses and a resident of the MPWMD, urged 
the Board to prepare a fair feasibility study that would stand 
up in court; it should not be focused on justifying Measure J. 
He requested that due to the anticipated high cost of the 
takeover process, the Board of Directors not move forward if 
there were any doubt that it would prevail in court. (e) 
Kevin Dayton, Government Affairs Liaison for the 
Monterey Peninsula Chamber of Commerce, described the 
report as well organized and a good beginning to create the 
framework for the feasibility study. He expressed support for 
a two-thirds majority vote of the Board to approve a 
resolution of necessity. (f) Rick Heuer, Monterey Peninsula 
Taxpayers Association, commended the Board for 
preparation of a report that was easy to read and understand. 
He stated that it could not be assumed that public ownership 
would result in transparency. The report should provide 
proof that transparency would be preserved. He defined 
feasible as: would public ownership save money from day 
one.  If that fact was not evident, then public ownership 
would not be feasible. (g) Jeff Davi, Co-Chair of the 
Coalition of Peninsula Businesses and a lifetime resident of 
the Monterey Peninsula, stated that the most important facets 
of the upcoming feasibility study would be the definition of 
feasibility and to quantify savings for the ratepayer.  He was 
pleased that the facilities proposed for public ownership 
would include Cal-Am’s seawater desalination project. (h) 
John Narigi stated that the General Manager’s report was 
good, but he was disappointed that the feasibility study had 
not been completed within the 9-month timeline.  He hoped 
that preparation of the feasibility study would not detour 
staff from its efforts to obtain final approval for Cal-Am’s 
desalination plant, to complete other components of the 
water supply solution, and achieve lifting of the Cease and 
Desist Order (CDO).  (i) Melodie Chrislock, representing 
Public Water Now, advised the Board that the organization 
never claimed that public ownership of the Cal-Am water 
system would result in immediate savings to ratepayers.  
Instead, the organization had consistently maintained that 
public ownership would result in affordable water at some 
point. (j) Peter Mountier, representing the Pacific Grove 
Chamber of Commerce, asked for additional transparency 
from legal counsel regarding the inconsistency between the 
requirement in Measure J that all Cal-Am assets be publicly 
owned, and the assertion in the report that specific assets 
would be included in the buy-out.  (k) Margaret-Anne 
Coppernoll asserted that the people voted to move ahead on 
all Measure J components, and the voters expect their 
democratic rights to be upheld.  She expressed support for 
the Pure Water Monterey Project as a means to avoid 
implementation of a cease and desist order in the Salinas 
Valley.  She urged the Board to adopt a resolution of 
necessity.  (l) Paul Bruno, resident of Monterey, thanked 
the General Manager for preparation of a good report.  He 
noted that one of the operations scenarios was to contract 
with an outside firm, instead of hiring Cal-Am employees.  



Draft Minutes – MPWMD Regular Board Meeting – August 19, 2019 -- 6 of 8 
 
 

 
  

He asked if the District reasoned that cost savings could not 
be achieved with Cal-Am employees, or was it that a high 
quality of service could not be guaranteed with Cal-Am 
employees. (j) Anna Thompson, resident of Carmel, stated 
that the community did not want a desalination plant.  She 
advocated for development of the Pure Water Monterey 
(PWM) Expansion project, and public ownership of Cal-Am.  
(k) Judi Lehman encouraged speakers to be more truthful 
and respectful of differing opinions.  She accepted the need 
for confidentiality regarding the identities of consultants,  
and looked forward to the time when those names could be 
made public. (l) Darryl Choates, resident of Seaside, stated 
that Cal-Am should not be publicly owned and that the 
feasibility study must be completed in a timely manner so 
the cost of public ownership could be determined.  (m) 
Susan Schiavone advocated for public ownership of Cal-
Am facilities, and development of a regional desalination 
plant by a regional agency. In the short-term, the PWM 
Expansion project could provide water for growth.  (n) 
Doug Yount, Chair of the Monterey Peninsula Chamber of 
Commerce Board of Directors, urged the District to carefully 
and thoughtfully move ahead on completion of the 
feasibility study.  He hoped that work on the feasibility study 
would not distract from completion of the three-pronged 
approach to establishment of a water supply that could 
support construction of housing in a responsible, sustainable 
manner. (o) Dan Turner, resident of Monterey, stated that 
Cal-Am water rates have doubled every 5 or 6 years and 
would continue to increase.  He urged the Board to adopt a 
resolution of necessity. (p) Frank Geisler, Interim CEO of 
the Monterey Peninsula Chamber of Commerce, stated that 
he looked forward to the completed feasibility study because 
the public had a right to know if public ownership would be 
feasible, if it would save money, and if public necessity 
could be shown at trial.  (q) Carlos Ramos stated that 
without a water supply project, there would be loss of jobs 
and a reduction in business activity on the Monterey 
Peninsula which would affect the entire community, not just 
the commercial sector. 
    
General Manager Stoldt presented a summary of the issue 
that is on file at the District office and can be viewed on the 
agency’s website. The Board received public comment.  
Stoldt responded to questions from the Board.  Chair Evans 
directed that this item be brought to the Water Demand 
Committee.  There were no objections from the Board. 
 
The following comments were directed to the Board during 
the public comment period on this item.  (a) Kevin Dayton, 
Government Affairs Liaison for the Monterey Peninsula 
Chamber of Commerce, recommended that the District work 
more aggressively with other local agencies to overcome the 
tendency within the community to use the water supply as an 
excuse to limit building. (b) John Narigi asked for an 
update on the status of Condition 2 of the CDO.  Stoldt 
reported that State Water Resources Control Board staff was 

 17. Allocation of Water for Affordable 
Housing 



Draft Minutes – MPWMD Regular Board Meeting – August 19, 2019 -- 7 of 8 
 
 

 
  

developing new language, but it likely would not conform to 
the needs of the community.  It would allow use of onsite 
water credits, but not transfers of water from one site to 
another. Neither would it recognize use of water from all the 
entitlements that have been established.  The District would 
be develop methods to make it easier to move water credits 
from one site to another.  (c) Darryl Choates urged the 
Board to allocate water from the reserve only for multi-
family housing that would remain affordable in perpetuity. 
He asserted that the water should not be allocated directly to 
the jurisdictions. (d) Paul Bruno recommended that the 
Board assist jurisdictions to make their decisions about 
water for affordable housing.  He stated that it should not be 
the responsibility of the City of Marina to provide affordable 
housing for the Peninsula.  (e) Jeff Davi, third generation 
resident on the Peninsula, stated that the city councils and 
Board of Supervisors must change zoning and increase 
density in order to meet housing needs.  Low income 
housing should be low cost in perpetuity.  He encouraged the 
District to find water that could be given to the jurisdictions. 
(f) Melodie Chrislock, representing Public Water Now, 
stated that water from the PWM Expansion project could be 
delivered in 18 months for $2,100 per acre-foot.  Water from 
the proposed desalination project would cost $600,000 to 
$700,000 per acre-foot.  She asked the Board to consider 
which project would facilitate affordable housing. (g) Tyler 
Williamson, Monterey City Council, suggested that due to 
the housing shortage, possibly the District could establish an 
emergency in order to justify to the State actions taken to 
expand the use of water credits.  He reported that the City of 
Monterey identified five parcels that could be developed for 
affordable housing, but the lack of water would limit options 
on those sites.  He announced that a coalition focused on 
housing as a regional issue plans to work with the District to 
develop methods for the allocation of any available water to 
affordable housing. (h) Peter Mountier, representing the 
Pacific Grove Chamber of Commerce, stated that the CDO 
can only be lifted when water supplies are available from 
Aquifer Storage and Recovery, PWM and desalination. (i) 
Craig Malin, City Manager for the City of Seaside, advised 
the Board that anything the District could do to make water 
available for affordable housing to the jurisdictions and 
developers would be greatly appreciated and utilized 
immediately.  (j) John Wizard, City of Seaside, expressed 
support for using the reserve allocation for affordable and 
transitional housing.  He expressed concern about 
establishing an open market for use of the reserve allocation, 
as economically stressed communities like Del Rey Oaks, 
Sand City or Seaside would most likely not be able to take 
advantage of it immediately.  
    
At 9:20 pm the meeting was recessed and reconvened at 
9:30 am to consider agenda items 12, 13, 14 and 15. 

   

     
There was no discussion of the Informational Items/Staff 
Reports. 

 INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF 
REPORTS 



Draft Minutes – MPWMD Regular Board Meeting – August 19, 2019 -- 8 of 8 
 
 

 
  

  18. Status on Measure J/Rule 19.8 
Spending 

  19. Letters Received 
  20. Committee Reports 
  21. Monthly Allocation Report 
  22. Water Conservation Program Report 
  23. Carmel River Fishery Report for July 

2019 
  24. Monthly Water Supply and California 

American Water Production Report  
   
The meeting was adjourned at 10:30 pm.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 

 

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\ConsentClndr\01\Item-1-Exh-A.docx Arlene M. Tavani, Deputy District Secretary 
 



ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
2. CONSIDER APPROVING AGREEMENT WITH DEVEERA, INC. FOR 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 
 
Meeting Date: September 16, 2019 Budgeted:   No (savings from not 

hiring IT Manager) 
 

From: David J. Stoldt, Program/   
 General Manager Line Item No. :  Professional Fees 
   
 

Prepared By: Suresh Prasad Cost Estimate:  $82,376.00 
 

General Counsel Review:  Pending review by District Counsel. 
Committee Recommendation:  The Administrative Committee reviewed this item on 
September 9, 2019 and recommended approval. 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
SUMMARY:  With the recent retirement of District’s Information Technology (IT) Manager, 
there is a need to immediately find a replacement to fill that position.  Based on the size and needs 
of the District, the replacement of a full time IT Manager position can most effectively be filled 
with the services of a consultant firm. 
 
With only two and half weeks of retirement notice from the outgoing IT Manager, District staff 
immediately started contacting IT consulting firms in the area to solicit proposals.  Three firms 
were contacted (Rayne Technology, DeVeera, Inc., and Alvarez Technology). 
 
Staff met with all three firms and went over the District’s requirements for IT services.  All three 
firms had representatives spend few hours on-site going through the discovery process to gather 
information.  Information gathered during this discovery process was used to compile proposals 
delivered by the IT firms.  Some of the services provided will be monitoring server 24/7, server 
and work station preventative maintenance, virus and anti-spam protection, network monitoring, 
and help desk support, etc. All three firms contacted were able to provide proposals within a week’s 
time, attached as Exhibit 2-A. 
 
After evaluating the current inventory of the District’s IT infrastructure, all three firms 
recommended the District immediately change its backup and disaster recovery (BDR) system.  In 
the event of catastrophic IT failure, the District’s existing BDR system will take weeks to rebuild 
and recover data.  There could potentially be irrecoverable data losses.  With the proposed change 
in the BDR system, the recovery time would be reduced to approximately few hours with no loss 
of data.  The current proposal includes a new BDR system for the District. 
 
Since outsourcing IT services is new to the District, staff would like to try outsourcing the IT 
services on a short term basis and return to the Board towards the end of fiscal year with a long 



term plan.  The proposed contract term will be from September 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 for the 
managed IT solution.  The BDR contract will be for a three year term.  Funding for this will come 
from savings realized by not hiring a full time IT Manager, which was budgeted in FY 2019-2020.  
 
Based on the proposals received, staff recommends authorizing to enter into an agreement with 
DeVeera, Inc.  The results of the three proposals are as follows: 
 

 
 
Since IT services is a crucial function of the District, staff had to engage the services of DeVeera, 
Inc under the General Manager’s authority to fill in the void left by the departure of the IT 
Manager.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  District staff recommends authorizing the General Manager or the 
Administrative Services Manager/CFO to enter into an Agreement with DeVeera, Inc. to provide 
Information Technology services for an amount of $71,632.00 plus 15% contingency of 
$10,744.00, for a not-to-exceed amount of $82,376.00.  The agreement term for the managed IT 
solutions will be until June 30, 2020.  The backup disaster recovery contract will be for a three 
year term. Funding for this will come from savings realized by not hiring a full time IT Manager, 
which was budgeted in FY 2019-2020 at about $175,000. 
  
EXHIBIT 
2-A Proposals for IT Services from DeVeera Inc., Rayne Technologies, and Alvarez 

Technology 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\ConsentClndr\02\Item-2.docx 

Rayne
Technologies

DeVeera
Inc

Alvarez
Technology

One-Time Fee $14,247.00 $0.00 $0.00
Monthly Fee $7,974.50 $4,612.00 $11,301.00
Backup, Disaster & Recovery
(based on 48TB/60TB of storage) included $2,551.20 not available
Backup, Disaster & Recovery
(hardware) $13,000.00 included not available
Hardware Parts (minor, i.e.,
hard drives, memory cards, etc) included excluded excluded

Total Monthly Costs $7,974.50 $7,163.20 $11,301.00
One-Tme Fee $14,247.00 $0.00 $0.00
One-Time Hardware $13,000.00 included not available

Notes:

BDR @48TB from DeVeera will cost $2196/month

One-time onboarding fee from Rayne can be amortized over 9 months

BDR hardware from Rayne will be loaned for 9 months, but will have to be purchased after 9 months



 

Page 1 of 11 
Customer Contract 
January 2019

This Managed Services Agreement ("Agreement") made between DeVeera Inc., located at 5 Mandeville Ct, Monterey, CA 
93940 ("Service Provider"), and Monterey Peninsula Water Management District with principal office 5 Harris Ct Bldg G, 
Monterey, CA 93940 ("Customer‐) is September 3, 2019 ("Effective Date"). The parties agree as follows:  

1. Services. Service Provider agrees to provide Customer the services described in Schedule C ("Managed Services") for the
Equipment listed in Schedule D to this Agreement ("Equipment"). Service Provider may from time to time change the
Services provided to Customer under this Agreement.

2. Term and Termination.
(a) Term. The Initial Term of this Agreement is for a period covered until June 30th, 2020, commencing on the Effective
Date. Thereafter, unless terminated in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

(b) Termination. This Agreement may be terminated as follows: (i) Either party may terminate this Agreement at the end of
the contract term or with thirty(30) days' written notice to the other party prior to the end of the initial or additional term;
(ii) Upon Service Provider's failure to perform or observe any material term or condition of this Agreement and failure to
correct within thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice from Customer of such failure, Customer may terminate the
Services affected by such breach; or (iii) Upon Customer's failure to pay any outstanding charges within fifteen (15) days of
receipt of written notice from Service Provider of delinquency, Service Provider may terminate this Agreement on 30 days’
notice.

(c) Effect of Termination. Upon termination of this Agreement Customer will be liable for all charges incurred as of the date
of termination. Sections 2, 6, 10, 11, 12, 14, and 16 shall survive termination of this Agreement.

3. Eligibility. Customer Equipment (workstations and servers):
Customer acknowledges that from time to time (a) Service Provider may identify additional items that need to be
purchased by Customer, and (b) changes in Customer's systems may be required in order for Service Provider to meet
Customer's requirements. In connection therewith, Customer agrees to work in good faith with Service Provider to
effectuate such purchases or changes. In the event that Service Provider is required to purchase any assets, including
computer hardware and/or software, in connection with Service Provider providing the Services, all such assets will remain
the sole property of Service

4. Payment.
(a) Fees. Service Provider will charge Customer in advance (on the 1st of each month) for services unless an alternate
payment schedule is set forth in Schedule B. Payment of service will be made within thirty (30) days from date of billing.

(b) Taxes. Amounts payable by Customer hereunder do not include local, state, or federal sales, use, value‐added, or other
taxes or tariffs of the United States of America or other countries based on the licenses or services provided under this
Agreement or Customer's use thereof. Customer will pay all such taxes or tariffs as may be imposed upon Service Provider
or Customer, except income taxes imposed on Service Provider by the United States of America or any state or local
government therein. Customer will be invoiced for, and Customer will pay, any such taxes or tariffs if Service Provider is
required to pay them on Customer's behalf.

(c) Failure to Pay. Customer acknowledges that its failure to pay timely any of the fees payable hereunder, or any portion
thereof, will be a material breach of this Agreement for which Service Provider may, in addition to pursuing all other
remedies, withhold Services and/or terminate this Agreement.

5. Customer Responsibilities.
(a) Customer Authorized Contact. Customer will identify one individual to be Service Provider's primary Customer contact
and another individual to be the secondary contact as noted on Schedule A. Customer represents that these people have
authorization to make decisions on behalf of Customer and may be relied upon by Service Provider when providing the
Services.

(b) Provision of Materials and Services to Service Provider. Customer agrees to timely furnish, at its own expense, all
personnel, all necessary computer hardware, software and related materials and appropriate and safe work spaces for

EXHIBIT 2-A



 
 

Page 2 of 11 
Customer Contract 
January 2019 
 

purposes of Service Provider performing the Services. Customer will also provide Service Provider with access to all 
information, passwords and facilities requested by Service Provider that is necessary for Service Provider to perform the 
Services. Access may be denied for any reason at any time, however if access to information, passwords or facilities is 
denied, Customer understands that the Service Provider may be unable to perform their duties adequately and if such a 
situation should exist, the Service Provider will be held harmless.  

Provider unless specifically stated otherwise in writing. Customer will be responsible for the quality, completeness and 
workmanship of any item or service furnished by it and for ensuring that the materials provided to Service Provider do not 
infringe or violate the rights of any third party. Customer will maintain adequate backup for all data and other items 
furnished to Service Provider.  

(c) Timeliness. Any timetable for the Services is dependent on timely receipt from Customer of all necessary items and 
authorizations to be supplied by it. In the event of a delay in delivery of any such items by Customer, any estimated 
completion date will be deferred for a period equal to the time lost by reason of the delay.  

(d) Software Installation or Replication. If Service Provider is required to install or replicate Customer software as part of 
the Services, Customer will independently verify that all such software is properly licensed. Customer's act of providing any 
software to Service Provider will be deemed Customer's affirmative acknowledgment to Service Provider that Customer has 
a valid license that permits Service Provider to perform the Services related thereto. In addition, Customer will retain the 
duty and obligation to monitor Customer's equipment for the installation of unlicensed software unless Service Provider in 
a written SOW expressly agrees to conduct such monitoring. Customer will indemnify and hold harmless Service Provider 
against all damages and expenses it may incur (including reasonable attorney’s fees and disbursements) related to 
Customer providing infringing materials to Service Provider or any Customer breach of this Section 5(d).  
 
6. Proprietary Rights.  
(a) Service Provider Intellectual Property. The parties acknowledge and agree that Service Provider may use preexisting 
proprietary computer software, methodology, techniques, software libraries, tools, algorithms, materials, products, ideas, 
skills, designs, know‐how or other intellectual property owned by Service Provider or its licensors, and Service Provider may 
also create additional intellectual property based thereon in the performance of the Services (all of the foregoing, the ‐
Service Provider Intellectual Property"). Customer agrees that any and all proprietary rights to the Service Provider 
Intellectual Property, as it existed as of the date hereof and as it may be modified or created in the course of providing the 
Services, including patent, copyright, trademark, and trade secret rights, to the extent they are available, are the sole and 
exclusive property of Service Provider, free from any claim or retention of rights thereto on the part of Customer, and 
Customer hereby assigns to Service Provider any rights it may have in any of the foregoing.  

(b) Customer Rights to Deliverables. Service Provider hereby grants to Customer a perpetual, worldwide, royalty‐free, 
nonexclusive, non‐transferable right and license to use, execute, reproduce, transmit, display, perform, create derivative 
works from, make, have made, sell and import the deliverables provided hereunder, including such Service Provider 
Intellectual Property solely as it may be incorporated therein, only for its own internal business purposes and to provide 
services to its customers consistent with the purposes of the Services. 
  
(c) Customer Data Ownership and Responsibility. Customer shall have sole responsibility for the accuracy, quality, 
integrity, legality, reliability, appropriateness, and intellectual property ownership or right to use of any data, information 
or material proprietary to Customer and provided or submitted by Customer to the Services in the course of using the 
Services (collectively, "Customer Data"), and Service Provider shall not be responsible or liable for the deletion, correction, 
destruction, damage, loss or failure to store any Customer Data. Customer has, and shall retain, ownership of all Customer 
Data. In the event that this Agreement is terminated, Service Provider shall return to Customer all of the Customer Data 
within 30 days of termination if Customer so requests at the time of termination.  

(d) Restrictions. Customer will not copy, use, modify, or distribute any Service Provider Intellectual Property except as 
expressly licensed in this Agreement. Customer will not remove the Service Provider Intellectual Property from any 
deliverables or cause or permit the modification, distribution, reverse engineering, de‐compilation, disassembly or other 
translation of the Service Provider Intellectual Property. Customer will not alter, change, or remove from the Service 
Provider Intellectual Property any identification, including copyright and trademark notices, and further agrees to place all 
such markings on any copies thereof.  

EXHIBIT 2-A



 
 

Page 3 of 11 
Customer Contract 
January 2019 
 

7. Relationship of Parties; No Solicitation of Employees. Service Provider is an independent contractor. Neither party has 
the right or authority to assume or to create any obligation or responsibility on behalf of the other party. This Agreement 
shall not be construed to create a joint venture or partnership between the parties. During the term of this Agreement and 
for a period of one (1) year thereafter, each party to this Agreement will not, without the prior written approval of the 
other party, solicit for employment any employee(s) of the other party or directly or indirectly induce any such employee to 
terminate his or her employment with the other party.  

8. Services Warranty. Service Provider warrants that it will perform the Services substantially in accordance with the 
specifications set forth in Schedule C. For any breach of the foregoing warranty, Service Provider will exercise commercially 
reasonable efforts to re‐perform any non‐conforming services that were performed within the ten (10) business day period 
immediately preceding the date of Customer's written notice to Service Provider specifying in reasonable detail such 
nonconformance. If Service Provider concludes that conformance is impracticable, then Service Provider will refund all fees 
paid by Customer to Service Provider hereunder, if any, allocable to such nonconforming Services.  

9. Third Party Products. Product warranties for third party products, if any, are provided by the manufacturers thereof and 
not by Service Provider. Service Provider's sole obligation is to act on behalf of Customer to assist in the satisfaction of any 
such warranty.  

10. DISCLAIMERS.  
 
Customer must meet minimum eligibility requirements in order to be eligible for a maintenance program. See Schedule B 
for minimum eligibility requirements. If a computer does not meet the minimum eligibility requirements Service Provider 
may provide the services necessary at service rates listed in Schedule B to achieve eligibility on the equipment.  
 
 (a) Customer Responsibility for Equipment. Customer shall provide a suitable working environment for any Equipment 
located at Customer's facility. Such environment includes, but is not limited to the appropriate temperature, static 
electricity and humidity controls and properly conditioned electrical supply for each piece of Equipment. Customer shall 
bear the risk of loss of any Equipment located at Customer's facility.  
 
(b) The express remedies set forth in Section 8 will constitute Customer's exclusive remedies, and Service Provider's sole 
obligation and liability, for any claim (a) that a Service or deliverable provided hereunder does not conform to specifications 
or is otherwise defective, or (b) that the Services were performed improperly.  

(c) Service Provider shall not be responsible for impairments to the Services caused by acts within the control of Customer 
or its employees, agents, contractors, suppliers or licensees, the interoperability of Customer applications, or other cause 
reasonably within Customer's control and not reasonably related to services provided under this Agreement.  

(d) EXCEPT FOR THE WARRANTIES MADE BY SERVICE PROVIDER IN SECTION 8, WHICH ARE LIMITED WARRANTIES AND THE 
ONLY WARRANTIES PROVIDED TO CUSTOMER, THE SERVICES AND DELIVERABLES ARE PROVIDED STRICTLY "AS IS." SERVICE 
PROVIDER DOES NOT MAKEANY ADDITIONAL WARRANTIES, EXPRESS, IMPLIED, ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR 
USAGE OF TRADE, OR STATUTORY, AS TO THE DELIVERABLES OR SERVICES PROVIDED HEREUNDER, OR ANY MATTER 
WHATSOEVER. THE PARTIES DISCLAIM ALL WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, 
SATISFACTORY QUALITY, TITLE AND NON‐INFRINGEMENT.  

(e) SERVICE PROVIDER DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE SERVICES OR ANY DELIVERABLES WILL MEET ANY CUSTOMER 
REQUIREMENTS NOT SET FORTH HEREIN, THAT ANY DELIVERABLES WILL OPERATE IN THE COMBINATIONS THAT 
CUSTOMER MAY SELECT FOR USE, THAT THE OPERATION OF ANY DELIVERABLES WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR‐FREE, 
OR THAT ALL ERRORS WILL BE CORRECTED. IF PRE‐ PRODUCTION (E.G., "ALPHA" OR "BETA") RELEASES OF SOFTWARE ARE 
PROVIDED TO CUSTOMER, SUCH COPIES ARE PROVIDED "AS‐IS" WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND.  
 
(f) Except as may be done in accordance with Section 16(b), no statement by any Service Provider employee or agent, orally 
or in writing, will serve to create any warranty or obligation not set forth herein or to otherwise modify this Agreement in 
any way whatsoever.  
 

EXHIBIT 2-A



 
 

Page 4 of 11 
Customer Contract 
January 2019 
 

11. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. SERVICE PROVIDER AND PTS ARE NOT LIABLE FOR ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, PUNITIVE, 
EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF ANY KIND. SERVICE PROVIDER'S LIABILITY TO CUSTOMER ON ACCOUNT OF 
ANY ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE LIMITED TO PROVEN DIRECT DAMAGES. PTS IS NOT 
LIABLE TO CUSTOMER ON ACCOUNT OF ANY ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT WHATSOEVER. THESE 
LIMITATIONS APPLY REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, WARRANTY, STRICT LIABILITY OR 
TORT.  
 
12. Essential Basis of Bargain. Customer acknowledges and agrees that the fees charged by Service Provider in this 
Agreement reflect the overall allocation of risk between the parties, including by means of the provisions for limitation of 
liability and exclusive remedies described in this Agreement. Such provisions form an essential basis of the bargain between 
the parties and a modification of such provisions would affect substantially the fees charged by Service Provider hereunder. 
In consideration of such fees, Customer agrees to such allocation of risk and hereby waives any and all rights, through 
equitable relief or otherwise, to subsequently seek a modification of such provisions or allocation of risk.  

13. Force Majeure. With the exception of Customer payment for services rendered, neither party shall be responsible for 
any failure to perform nor delay caused where such failure or delay is due to circumstances reasonably beyond the party's 
control.  

14. Confidentiality. "Confidential Information" means all nonpublic technical or business information, including the terms 
of this Agreement, disclosed by one party to the other party and marked as proprietary or which is of a nature or presented 
under circumstances that would cause one to reasonably conclude it should be treated as confidential. The receiving party 
shall hold such information in confidence for three years after termination of this Agreement, restrict disclosure of such 
information solely to its employees with a business need to know such information, and use a degree of care no less than 
the degree of care as it uses for its own proprietary information to prevent the unauthorized disclosure, use or publication 
of such proprietary information.  

15. Insurance.  
(a) Nature and Amounts. Service Provider agrees to maintain sufficient insurance coverage to enable it to meet its 
obligations created by this Agreement and by law. Without limiting the foregoing, to the extent this Agreement creates 
exposure generally covered by the following insurance policies, Service Provider will maintain at its sole cost and expense at 
least the following insurance covering its obligations under this Agreement: (a) Commercial General Liability including (i) 
bodily injury, (ii) property damage, (iii) contractual liability coverage, and (iv) personal injury, in an amount not less than 
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence; (b) Business Automobile Liability for owned, hired and non‐owned vehicles 
in an amount of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for each accident; (c) Workers Compensation at statutory 
limits; and (d) Professional Liability Insurance covering errors and omissions and wrongful acts in the performance of the 
Services. Such insurance will bear a combined single limit per occurrence of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000).  
 
16. General.  
(a) Entire Agreement. This Agreement together with the Schedules, which are hereby incorporated herein by this 
reference, contain all the agreements, representations, and understandings of the parties and supersedes any previous 
understandings, commitments, or agreements, oral or written, with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. To the 
extent there is any inconsistency between a term of this Agreement and a term of any Schedule, the term of (f) No Third‐
Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement will govern the performance of Services between the Parties, and confers no rights 
upon any of the Parties' thereunder, employees, agents, contractors or customers, or upon any other person or entity other 
than DeVeera Inc.  
 
(b) Modification. This Agreement may not be modified or amended except in a writing signed by a duly authorized 
representative of each party that expressly states the sections of this Agreement to be modified; no other act, usage, or 
custom will be deemed to amend or modify this Agreement. Each party hereby waives any right it may have to claim that 
this Agreement was subsequently modified other than in accordance with this Section 16(b).  
 
(c) No Waiver. No failure on the part of either party to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right, power, or privilege 
will operate as a waiver thereof; nor will any single or partial exercise of any right hereunder preclude any other or further 
exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right. The waiver by either party of any default or breach of this Agreement 
will not constitute a waiver of any other or subsequent default or breach. 

EXHIBIT 2-A



 
 

Page 5 of 11 
Customer Contract 
January 2019 
 

  
(d) Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California without regard to its choice of law 
provisions.  
 
(e) Interpretation. Any provision of this Agreement held to be void, illegal, or unenforceable shall be restated to lawfully 
reflect the parties' original intent to the fullest extent possible. All other provisions shall remain in full force and effect.  
 
(f) Notices. Any notice required under this Agreement shall be sent by registered mail, return receipt requested, facsimile, 
overnight express mail, or personal delivery to the address of the party set forth at the beginning of this Agreement. 
Notices sent by registered mail shall be deemed effective on the third business day following mailing. Notices sent 
otherwise shall be deemed effective on receipt. A party may change its address for notices upon thirty days prior written 
notice.  
 
(g) Assignment. Neither Customer nor Service Provider may assign its rights or obligations under this Agreement without 
Service Provider's prior written consent which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  
 
(h) Purchase Orders. Customer may, for purposes of administrative convenience, use Customer's standard form of 

purchase order to order Services. The parties understand and agree that any terms or conditions on any such purchase 

order in any way different from or in addition to the terms and conditions of this Agreement will have no effect whatsoever 

and Service Provider hereby rejects all such terms and conditions. 

 

X
Jay Patel
President, DeVeera Inc.

 

X
Suresh Prasad
Chief Financial Officer, MPWMD

   

EXHIBIT 2-A



 
 

Page 6 of 11 
Customer Contract 
January 2019 
 

 

Schedule A ‐ Customer Contact Information 

 

  Customer Information 

Company Name  Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

Billing Contact Name  Suresh Prasad 

Billing Contact Phone Number  831‐658‐5600 

Billing Contact Email  accounting@mpwmd.net 

Address Line 1  5 Harris Court 

Address Line 2  Building G 

City, St, Zip Code  Monterey, CA 93940 

 

 

  Primary Customer Contact Information 

Primary Customer Contact  Suresh Prasad 

Primary Contact Phone  (831) 658‐5614 

Primary Contact Email  suresh@mpwmd.net 

Primary Contact Schedule  MONDAY – FRIDAY 8:00 AM TO 5:00 PM 

Primary Contact After‐Hours 
Phone Number 

(831) 521‐5644 

 

 

  Secondary Customer Contact Information 

Primary Customer Contact  Dave Stoldt 

Primary Contact Phone  (831) 658‐5600 

Primary Contact Email  dstoldt@mpwmd.net 

Primary Contact Schedule  MONDAY – FRIDAY 8:00 AM TO 5:00 PM 

Primary Contact After‐Hours 
Phone Number 

(508) 954‐8414 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 2-A



Page 7 of 11

Schedule B  - Pricing and Services 

Technology Services for New Projects Rate 

● Software Development and custom application / work flow development. $150 per hour 

● Network Security and Compliance (Security Assessment & Audits, GDPR,

HIPAA, PCI, FISMA, SOX)

● Wireless Networking (Cloud Wi-Fi, routing and firewall / in-wall cabling)

● Business Phone Solutions (Cloud & on-premises)

● Security Devices (Cloud managed NVR, Camera, Face-recognition and LPR)

● General Engineering Services

Government Rate 
$125 per hour / as 
needed. 

● Project Management 10% of project cost 

Managed Services 

Daily, weekly, monthly support of servers, workstations, networks, printers, other 

devices for 

• 28 Users & 24 Server

$4,612 per month 

• Anti-Virus for all Workstations and Servers Included Included in Monthly 

• Back Up Services – 60 TB  $2,551.20 

TOTAL MONTHLY $ 7,163.20 

General Terms 

● For projects and new work, 50% payment immediately due upon approval of

quote. 50% final payment due at completion of project, net 15.

● 100% payment immediately due upon approval of quote for requested

hardware.

● Standard business day support not covered by a managed services contract

will incur a minimum of 1 hour billable.

● Specific details may vary by client and by contract.

EXHIBIT 2-A



 
 

Page 8 of 11 
Customer Contract 
January 2019 
 

Managed IT Services Detail 

 Site Documentation 

A senior engineer will create a DeVeera Care documentation specifically for your company. The 
documentation will hold important information about your technology infrastructure and will be 
kept  online  for  easy  access  by  you  and  DEVEERA  Solutions.  DeVeera  will  give  Client 
Representative  Portal  access  for  entire  site  documentation.  The  Documentation  covers 
important items that are needed for ongoing technology support including: 

 

 Data Backup Schedules 

 Hardware and Software Asset Inventory 

 ISP and Website information 

 Password Inventory for all critical Hardware, Software, and third‐party Web Portals 

 DNS Records, Website hosting information, Microsoft 365 administration accounts 

 Network Map, including all remote sites and VPNs 

 NVR and Security Camera System Documentation 

 VLANs for Printers and Phone System 

 Hardware and Software including licenses, support and warranty 
 

 Server Monitoring 

This 24x7 monitoring service will allow us to watch your Servers to detect and report problems 
before they escalate into downtime, data loss, or expensive repair issues. Some of the items 
we monitor include: 
 

 Operating System/Terminal Server 

 Network Services 

 Active Directory 

 Applications such as Exchange, SQL Server, Citrix 

 Critical Event Logs 

 Application Status 

 System Performance Data 

 Backup Monitoring and Administration 
 

 Server and Workstation Preventative Maintenance 
This service allows us to provide preventative maintenance activities on your servers, 
workstations and laptops to help prevent problems before they escalate into downtime, data 
loss, or expensive repair issues. We include the following preventative maintenance services on 
an ongoing basis. 
 

 Patch Management (white‐listed Critical Security patches for Microsoft operating systems and 
applications) 

 Temporary File and Internet Debris Removal 

 Hard Drive integrity checks (SMART enabled computers only) 

 Service Pack Installation 

 Third Party Application updates 

 Server, network switch and firewall firmware updates 
 

 

 Network Device Monitoring 
This 24X7 monitoring service includes availability monitoring for Network Devices such as: 

EXHIBIT 2-A



 
 

Page 9 of 11 
Customer Contract 
January 2019 
 

 Local area network IP devices (routers, firewalls, network‐enabled printers, etc.) 

 Local area network SNMP enabled devices (switches, etc.) 

 Gateway VPN tunnels 

 Externally hosted web and email servers 

 Virus Protection 
Get comprehensive virus protection for desktops, servers, and e‐mail servers without the need 
for costly software or hardware. We eliminate the trouble of annual maintenance renewals and 
the risk of expired protection. Virus protection never expires and software is regularly updated 
while your systems are protected under the Managed Services program. 

 

 Antivirus Signature Monitoring 
Our Managed Services program makes sure that antivirus software is updated with the most 
recent  virus definitions,  helping  create  a  secure  environment  for  your  network. While we 
cannot guarantee complete protection from a virus outbreak (new viruses appear every day), 
our proactive monitoring is among the best available. 

 

 Spyware Detection and Removal 

Thanks to a remote filtering service we offer, we can stop most spyware without requiring you 
to purchase and maintain expensive in‐house hardware or software. 

 

 Remote Access and Support 
Our secure remote support tool enables us to respond more quickly to problems by 
accessing your network from our office and eliminating the delay of waiting for an 
engineer to come on site. 

 

 Guaranteed 1 hour telephone response time during business hours for Technical 
Problems submitted by telephone from you or your authorized staff members. 

 

 UNLIMITED Help Desk Telephone and Remote Support. As Needed On‐Site Support 

Our team of knowledgeable, courteous technicians is available to answer basic questions and solve 
problems quickly over the phone or through remote support. If, after 30 minutes, the Help Desk 
Technician has not been able to identify a clear path to resolution, or it is determined that an on‐site 
visit is necessary, the support issue will be escalated to a senior Engineer. 

 

 Server Administration 

Included as part of the Help Desk Telephone and Remote Support service, our technicians will 
perform a variety of common server administration tasks for no additional fee. 

 Create, disable, and maintain user accounts 

 Change or reset user account passwords 

 Manage security rights and security group membership 

 Create and manage directory shares 

 On‐site Backup tape collection and store at our location 
 

 Monthly Status Report 

Each month we will provide a comprehensive report of the overall health of your technology, 
plus any issues and repairs experienced over the previous month. A ticket digest will also be 
given, which gives information on how many tickets were created and fixed with response 
times.  

EXHIBIT 2-A



 
 

Page 10 of 11 
Customer Contract 
January 2019 
 

 

 Quarterly Review and Planning Meeting 

We will use this time to assess your personal comfort level with your current technology, 
prioritize any outstanding issues, and plan technology needs to support anticipated changes 
to your business in upcoming months. 

 

 Local Onsite Support 

If you experience any type of problem that cannot be resolved remotely, our team of 
technicians will troubleshoot and resolve the issue onsite at NO ADDITIONAL SERVICE FEE. 

 

 24/7 Monitoring and Management 
The Client Site is monitored and managed 24x7 by our Network Operations Center (NOC) Team. If an 
issue occurs during any backup or with the hardware we are immediately notified and take corrective 
action. The DEVEERA NOC performs daily tests to verify the integrity of base and incremental images. 
Should an incremental have a corruption, DEVEERA Engineers copy the corrupt image from the offsite 
Data Center to the Backup Appliance and run the verification again. If this does not solve the problem 
then immediate corrective action is taken to get the backup to a consistent state. 

 

 Annual Technology Audit 

Annually, we will perform an extensive analysis of your network's trends and performance. as well as 
review your company's goals and technology plan. This annual review will allow us to make specific 
recommendations for improving your network performance, office productivity, and help you to 
plan and budget for future IT needs. 

 
Other Services 

 DEVEERA Anti‐Spam 

We'll restore confidence in email with managed email threat protection. Our Anti‐Spam 
provides protection against spam, viruses, and phishing exploits outside the corporate 
network.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 2-A



 
 

Page 11 of 11 
Customer Contract 
January 2019 
 

Schedule C ‐ Plan Details (Not Covered) 

 

Items Not Covered Under DeVeera Care 

The following items are excluded from the DEVEERA Support Plan: 

 
Hardware and Software 

The cost of any hardware or software will be billed in addition to your service plan, including: 

 Hardware and/or software required to troubleshoot and resolve break/fix issues 

 Hardware upgrades to covered equipment 

 Software upgrades to covered operating systems and business applications 

 New hardware, software or other equipment 
 

Installation of New Hardware, Software, and Other Equipment Services required to 
research, select, and implement new hardware, software, and other equipment will NOT be billed on 
an hourly basis. Once implemented, the maintenance of new hardware, software, and other 
equipment will be incorporated into your DeVeera Care plan. 

 
Non‐Supported Software and Equipment 

DEVEERA cannot effectively manage the performance of your network and individual systems 
when new software and equipment is installed without our knowledge and participation. Software 
and equipment not explicitly listed Schedule Do this document will not be covered, unless the 
software or equipment is pre‐approved and installed with the participation of a DEVEERA senior 
technician. 

 
Problems Caused by Non‐Supported Software and Equipment 
Resolution of problems caused by non‐covered software or equipment will be billed on an 
hourly basis in addition to your service plan at the rates listed in Schedule B of this document. 
(more than 5 users).  

 
Network Relocation 

Server, workstation and printer moves will be billed on an hourly basis if Client is moving from one 
location to another location. If hardware is being moved within the same location is included as 
part of this contract.  

 
In‐Depth Software Training 

The DEVEERA helpdesk can be extremely effective in answering quick software "how to" and "what to do" 

questions. In‐depth training quotes will be provided on a case‐by‐case basis.  

 
The following items are excluded from the DeVeera CarePlan: 

 
Hardware and Software 

The cost of any hardware or software will be billed in addition to your service plan. 
 

Local Data 

Local data may reside on your desktop and laptop machines. If the local machines are not backed 
up to the server or using our secure desktop package, the data on the local machines will not be 
backed up. 

EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A



EXHIBIT 2-A





ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
3. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF MPWMD RESOLUTION NO. 2019-15 AMENDING 

TABLE 2:  NON-RESIDENTIAL WATER USE FACTORS 
 
Meeting Date: September 16, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
  

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/   
 General Manager Line Item No.:        
 

Prepared By: Stephanie Locke Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  No 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
SUMMARY:  Resolution 2019-15 (Exhibit 3-A) amends Rule 24, Table 2: Non-Residential 
Water Use Factors to reduce the factor for laundromat Clothes Washers.  The previous factor was 
last updated in 1993.  Changes in technology and practices have resulted in a reduction in water 
use from 0.20 AF/machine to 0.12 AF/machine.  The District required replacement of inefficient 
washers with High Efficiency Clothes Washers and changes in commercial washer/extractor 
programming to reduce water use by January 2014. 

RECOMMENDATION:  The Board should adopt Resolution 2019-15 and approve the change 
to the laundromat Clothes Washer factor on Table II.   

EXHIBIT 
3-A Draft Resolution 2019-15 Amending Rule 24 - Table 2 Non-Residential Water Use Factors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\ConsentClndr\03\Item-3.docx 
 
 
 

 





 
 
 
 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT 3-A 

 
DRAFT 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-15 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
AMENDING TABLE 2:  NON-RESIDENTIAL WATER USE FACTORS  

 
 WHEREAS District Rule 24-B (Non-Residential Calculation of Water Use Capacity) 
allows changes to Table 2: Non-Residential Water Use Factors through Resolution of the Board 
of Directors; and 
 

WHEREAS staff has determined that the existing laundromat factor (last updated in 
1993) overestimates Capacity and that a lower factor for a laundromat Clothes Washer is more 
indicative of the water used in a laundromat.  The proposed factor of 0.12 AF/machine was 
validated through five samples that have had District inspections to verify compliance with current 
water efficiency requirements; 

 
WHEREAS current technology has reduced laundromat use through water efficient 

Clothes Washers and programming changes to reduce water use in commercial washer extractors.  
These are requirements of the District as of January 1, 2014; 

  
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District resolves that District Rule 24-B, Table 2: Non-Residential Water Use Factors 
shall be adopted as shown in Attachment 1. 

 
On motion of Director ______________, and second by Director ____________, the 

foregoing resolution is duly adopted this 16th day of September 2019, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NAYS: 
ABSENT:  
 
I, David J. Stoldt, Secretary to the Board of Directors of the Monterey Peninsula Water 

Management District, hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted on the 16th 
day of September 2019. 

 
Witness my hand and seal of the Board of Directors this ____ day of ___________ 2019. 

 
________________________________________ 
David J. Stoldt, Secretary to the Board of Directors 

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\ConsentClndr\03\Item-3-Exh-A.docx 





ITEM: DISCUSSION ITEM 
 
8. DISCUSS PLAN TO DEFEASE MECHANICS BANK LOAN (FORMERLY 

RABOBANK)  
 
Meeting Date: September 16, 2019 Budgeted:   Yes 
 
From: David J. Stoldt, Program/ N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
 
Prepared By: Dave Stoldt  Cost Estimate:   N/A 
 
General Counsel Approval:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  This item was presented to the Administrative Committee 
for discussion.  No action was taken by the committee. 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines section 15378. 
 
SUMMARY:  On April 1, 2013 the District entered into a $4,000,000 installment purchase 
agreement (borrowing) on the Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) Project Santa Margarita 
facilities.  The proceeds were utilized to fund ASR completion and expansion, to replenish District 
reserves that had been expended for ASR, and to establish a debt service reserve fund of $219,136.  
Interest on the borrowing was established at 3.6%. 
 
The current balance of the principal due is $3,466,312.30 
 
Although the term was nominally established through December 31, 2042 there is a balloon 
payment due at the “Maturity Date” of June 30, 2023.  At the Maturity Date the District must pay 
all outstanding Installment Payments or refinance the borrowing. 
 
The borrowing is secured by the District’s pledge of “Revenues”, defined as “the water supply 
charge levied pursuant to Ordinance 152.”  The Ordinance 152 Citizens Panel has advised the 
Board to develop a plan for payment of the loan, emphasizing a desire to pay the loan off at its 
2023 maturity or sooner in order to unencumber the Water Supply Charge.  District Ordinance No. 
152 which established the Water Supply Charge states in its Section 10.C(b) that the District shall 
not collect a Water Supply Charge “to the extent alternative funds are available via a charge 
collected on the California American Water Company bill.”  Therefore, in April 2016, the Board 
adopted a plan examining reductions or possible sunsets of either or both. 
 
The plan adopted was to collect both charges for at least 3 years.  This was done for 4 key reasons: 
(i) the User Fee would primarily fund programs already in Cal-Am surcharges that would be 
removed (District conservation and river mitigation), so there was potentially little “new” revenue; 
(ii) the Monterey Peninsula Taxpayers Association lawsuit over the Water Supply Charge 
remained unresolved at the time, hence that revenue remained at risk; (iii) there were still large 
near-term expenditures required on water supply projects; and (iv) Cal-Am had a recent history of 
significant revenue undercollection, so the viability of the User Fee was at risk until the CPUC 



ruled on a more stable rate design, and the predictability of the User Fee revenue was better known.  
After that time, begin to sunset or reduce collections of either or both, if possible.  We are now in 
the third year of collections of both fees, therefore this item is brought to the board for discussion 
at this time, with direction and action anticipated during budget discussion in the spring. 
 
The remaining amortization through the Maturity date is shown below: 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Hence, $2,952,998.30 will need to be paid or refinanced on June 30, 2023. 
 
The Board has several options: 
 

1) Status Quo 1:  Make semiannual payments (shown above) and refinance in 2023. 
 

2) Status Quo 2:  Make semiannual payments and budget the pay-off from reserves in the 
FY2022-23 budget. 
 

3) Discretionary Set-Asides:  Board budgets additional amounts each year beginning FY2020-
21 to accumulate a portion of the pay-off balance. 
 

4) Sinking Fund Defeasance:  Board establishes a sinking fund beginning FY2020-21 to 
accumulate the full pay-off balance.  Assuming a 1-year LAIF investment rate of 2.3%, the 
Board would need to set aside $962,202 each July 1st in the next three budgets, in addition 
to the regular annual principal and interest ($219,136). 
 

5) Full Defeasance:  Board budgets to purchase a 3-year negotiable CD from reserves in the 
FY2020-21 budget to pay the full pay-off balance.  At today’s 3-year interest rate (2.65%), 
this would require a set-aside in next year’s budget of $2,730,149 in addition to the annual 
principal and interest amount. 

Principal Principal Interest Total
Outstanding Due Due Payment

2019 Jun 30 3,512,848.30 46,536.00         63,032.00       109,568.00      
Dec 31 3,466,312.30 47,374.00         62,194.00       109,568.00      

2020 Jun 30 3,418,938.30 48,226.00         61,342.00       109,568.00      
Dec 31 3,370,712.30 49,095.00         60,473.00       109,568.00      

2021 Jun 30 3,321,617.30 49,978.00         59,590.00       109,568.00      
Dec 31 3,271,639.30 50,878.00         58,690.00       109,568.00      

2022 Jun 30 3,220,761.30 51,794.00         57,774.00       109,568.00      
Dec 31 3,168,967.30 52,726.00         56,842.00       109,568.00      

2023 Jun 30 3,116,241.30 3,116,241.30    55,893.00       3,172,134.30   
Debt Service Reserve Fund Available: 219,136.00      

Net Amount Due June 30, 2023: 2,952,998.30   

RaboBank Borrowing
Amount Due through Maturity Date



6) Prepayment:  Board budgets to prepay on December 31, 2020.  This would require a 
budgeted amount for FY 2020-21 of $3,431,185.30 
 

7) Refinance:  At any time before the Maturity Date, if there are favorable market conditions, 
the District could choose to refinance.  However, that would leave the Water Supply Charge 
encumbered.  There would also be financing costs, which in 2013 were $40,000. 

 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\DiscussionItems\08\Item-8.docx 





 
DISCUSSION:  With the approval of the Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project (MPWSP) 
and the continued environmental work on Pure Water Monterey (PWM) expansion as a back-up 
option, it is an opportune time to examine available supplies and their ability to meet current and 
long-term demand.  The Board Chair requested the General Manager to review the available data 
and present an update to the Board.  Exhibit 9-A attached is an overview of historic and projected 
demand, as it relates to planned water supply. 
 
EXHIBIT 
9-A Supply and Demand for Water on the Monterey Peninsula 
 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\DiscussionItems\09\Item-9.docx 

 
 

ITEM: DISCUSSION ITEM 
 
9.  SUPPLIES AND DEMANDS FOR WATER ON THE MONTEREY PENINSULA 

– PAST AND FUTURE 
 
Meeting Date: September 16, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 

From: David J. Stoldt Program/   
 General Manager Line Item No.:      N/A 
 

Prepared By: David J. Stoldt Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Approval:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  Action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines section 15378. 





EXHIBIT 9-A 

Supply and Demand for Water on the Monterey Peninsula 
Prepared by David J. Stoldt, General Manager 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
September 2019 

 
With the approval of the Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project (MPWSP) and the continued 
environmental work on Pure Water Monterey (PWM) expansion as a back-up option, it is an 
opportune time to examine available supplies and their ability to meet current and long-term 
demand.  This memorandum will also look at the changing nature of demand on the Monterey 
Peninsula, the underlying assumptions in the sizing of the water supply portfolio, and indicators 
of the market’s ability to absorb new demand. 
 
Supply 
 
Available sources of supply are shown in Table 1 below and are described in the discussion that 
follows.  Despite the California Supreme Court’s decision to not hear the two petitions for writ 
of review, there remains the risk of additional legal challenges and not all permits have been 
issued for California American Water’s (Cal-Am) MPWSP desalination plant.  For these reasons, 
supply has been shown with both desalination and with PWM expansion. 
 

Table 1 
Monterey Peninsula Available Supply 

(Acre-Feet Annually) 
 

Supply Source w/ Desalination w/ PWM Expansion 
MPWSP Desalination Plant 6,252 0 
Pure Water Monterey 3,500 3,500 
PWM Expansion 0 2,250 
Carmel River 3,376 3,376 
Seaside Basin 774 774 
Aquifer Storage & Recovery (ASR) 1,300 1,300 
Sand City Desalination Plant 94 94 
   Total Available Supply 15,296 11,294 
Other Available Supplies 406 406 
   Total Available Supply w/Other 15,702 11,700 

 
Desalination:  The 6.4 million gallon per day (MGD) MPWSP desalination plant is expected to 
deliver 6,252 acre-feet annually (AFA).1 It is likely to begin deliveries in early 2022, considering 

                                                           
1 CPUC Decision 18-09-017, September 13, 2018, page 70; Amended Application of California-American Water 
Company (U210W), Attachment H, March 14, 2016 



 
 

final permits in November 2019, a 21-month construction period, and 6-month commissioning 
and start-up window.2 
 
Pure Water Monterey:  Monterey One Water’s (M1W) project is expected to come online in late 
2019 and begin deliveries of 3,500 AFA to Cal-Am in early 2020.  It is over 90% complete. 
 
Pure Water Monterey Expansion:  The expansion of Pure Water Monterey is expected to yield 
2,250 AFA.3  The Notice of Preparation indicates source waters for the expansion are secure: 
“No new source water diversion and storage sites are necessary to achieve the Expanded 
PWM/GWR Project’s recycled water yield objective of an additional 2,250 AFY of replacement 
supplies.  The Expanded PWM/GWR Project is designed to utilize existing M1W contractual 
rights to source waters and wastewaters.”  There are several different configurations of source 
waters that could be utilized for the expansion, but one proposed alternative is 81% contractual 
rights to wastewater and excess secondary effluent and 19% of Blanco Drain and Reclamation 
Ditch waters.  This project could come online by January 2022. 
 
Carmel River:  Cal-Am has legal rights to 3,376 AFA from the Carmel River comprised of 2,179 
AFA from License 11866, 1,137 AFA of pre-1914 appropriative rights, and 60 AFA of riparian 
rights.  This does not include what is referred to as Table 13 rights, discussed under “Other 
Available Supplies” below. 
 
Seaside Basin:  The 2006 Seaside Groundwater Basin adjudication imposed triennial reductions 
in operating yield for Standard Producers such as Cal-Am until the basin’s Natural Safe Yield is 
achieved.  The last reduction will occur in 2021 and Cal-Am will have rights to 1,474 AFA.  
However, with the delivery of a long-term permanent water supply, the company would like to 
begin replacing its accumulated deficit of over-pumping by in-lieu recharge by leaving 700 AFA 
of its production right in the basin for 25 years.  Hence, only 774 AFA is reflected as long-term 
supply available, although the additional 700 AF becomes available again in the future. 
 
Aquifer Storage & Recovery:  There are two water rights that support ASR.  Permit 20808A 
allows maximum diversion of 2,426 AFA and Permit 20808C allows up to 2,900 AFA for a total 
of 5,326 AFA.  However, these are maximums that may only be close to being achieved in the 
wettest of years.  Based on long-term historical precipitation and streamflow data, ASR is 
designed to produce 1,920 AFA on average.  The MPWSP assumes a lesser amount of 1,300 AFA 
to be conservative. 
 

                                                           
2 www.watersupplyproject.org/schedule 
3 Notice of Preparation of a Supplemental Environmental Impact Report and Public Scoping Meeting Notice, page 
4, May 15, 2019 



 
 

Sand City Desalination Plant:  The Sand City plant was designed to produce a nominal 300 AFA, 
but has failed to achieve more than the 276 AF in 2011.  Due to source water quality issues and 
discharge permit requirements the plant has averaged 199 AFA the past three years and 
appears on course for approximately 140 AF in Water Year 2019.  The intakes will likely be 
augmented and production increased (see “Other Available Supplies”, below.)  Here only the 94 
AFA of long-term production legally committed to offset Carmel River pumping is included. 
 
Other Available Supplies:  In 2013, Cal-Am received Permit 21330 from the State Water Board 
for 1,488 AFA from the Carmel River.  However, the permit is seasonally limited to December 1 
through May 31 each year and subject to instream flow requirements.  As a result, actual 
production will vary by water year.  Here, we have assumed 300 AFA on average.  For the Sand 
City desalination plant the amount produced in excess of 94 AFA is available for general Cal-Am 
use and eventually to serve growth in Sand City.  With new intakes, we have assumed average 
production of 200 AFA or 106 AFA of other available supply.  There is also available unused 
capacity in the Seaside Basin which annually is reallocated to the Standard Producers such as 
Cal-Am as “Carryover Credit” under the adjudication decision. While not insignificant, Carryover 
Credit has not been included in the “Other Available Supplies”.  Total “Other” is 406 AFA. 
 
Historical Water Demand for which MPWSP Desalination Plant is Sized 
 
The MPWSP was initially sized solely as a replacement supply4 for current customer demand, 
but this has changed slightly over time as described below.   Consideration was also given to 
peak month and peak day.  Additional demand was recognized to accommodate legal lots of 
record, a request by the hospitality industry to anticipate a return to occupancy rates similar to 
that which existed prior to the World Trade Center tragedy, and to shift the buildout of Pebble 
Beach off the river.5  Table 2 below shows the demand assumptions used in sizing the MPWSP.  
Each component is discussed below. 
 

Table 2 
Water Demand Assumed in Sizing the MPWSP 

(Acre-Feet Annually) 
 

Demand Component Acre-Feet Annually 
Average Current Customer Demand 13,290 
Legal Lots of Record 1,181 
Tourism Bounce-Back 500 
Pebble Beach Buildout 325 
   Total Water Demand 15,296 

 

                                                           
4 Direct Testimony of Richard C. Svindland, April 23, 2012, pages 4,5,7 
5 Supplemental Testimony of Richard C. Svindland, January 11, 2013, pages 4-5 



 
 

Average Current Customer Demand:  The Application of Cal-Am to the California Public Utilities 
Commission (CPUC) in April 2012 utilized 13,290 AFA which was the 5-year average demand for 
2007-2011.6  As stated earlier, this was to be replacement supply and the Application stated “At 
this point future demands of the Monterey System have not been included in the sizing of the 
plant.”7  At that time, the 5-year average maximum month was 1,388 AF and the highest month 
was 1,532 AF.8 
 
In a January 2013 CPUC filing, average demand was reiterated by Cal-Am to be 13,290 AFA but 
Cal-Am added that the plant would need to be increased larger by approximately 700 acre-feet 
per year for the in-lieu recharge of the Seaside Basin.5  However, as can be seen in comparing 
Tables 1 and 2 above, supply equals demand at 15,296 AFA without changing the size of the 
plant from the initial Application. 
 
In a 2016 update to the CPUC, Cal-Am recognized that average demand had declined in the 
intervening three years.9  The 5-year average had declined to 10,966 AFA and the maximum 
month declined to 1,250 AF.  At the time of the 2016 update, Cal-Am suggested that it should 
size the plant based on the backward-looking 10-year average demand and maximum month, 
instead of the 5-year average in the original Application, as well as several alternate 
assumptions about return of water to the Salinas Valley.  They concluded “we do not believe the 
size of the plants should be changed.”10 
 
In a September 2017 filing to the CPUC, Cal-Am acknowledged continuing declines in demand, 
but indicated that the plant sizing remained appropriate saying “We anticipate demand to 
rebound over time after these new water supplies are available, the drought conditions continue 
to subside, the moratorium on new service connections is lifted, and strict conservation and 
water use restrictions are eased.”11  The company also for the first time introduced the use of 
future population and demand as a way to “normalize” the average demand used in sizing, a 
departure from the “replacement supply” basis under the initial Application in 2012.12  This 
resulted in average “current” system demand of 12,350 AFA.  This amount, combined with the 
same lots of record, tourism bounce-back, and Pebble Beach buildout results in demand of 
14,355 AFA – a reduction from the initial Application – but the company asserted that the plant 
need not be resized because this would allow it to run at 86% capacity, a more reasonable 
operating rate compared to the 95% posed in the original Application. 

                                                           
6 Direct Testimony of Richard C. Svindland, April 23, 2012, page 21 
7 Direct Testimony of Richard C. Svindland, April 23, 2012, page 36 
8 Direct Testimony of Richard C. Svindland, April 23, 2012, page 22 
9 Supplemental Testimony of Richard C. Svindland, April 14, 2016 (Errata), pages 7-11 
10 Supplemental Testimony of Richard C. Svindland, April 14, 2016 (Errata), page 9 
11 Direct Testimony of Ian Crooks Errata Version, September 27, 2017, page 10 
12 Direct Testimony of Ian Crooks Errata Version, September 27, 2017, pages 11-13 



 
 

The CPUC, in its September 2018 Decision, determined that Cal-Am’s overall future water 
demand will be approximately 14,000 AFA13 and therefore the 6.4 MGD desalination plant is 
warranted. 
 
Legal Lots of Record:  The 2012 Application to the CPUC also included 1,181 AFA for Legal Lots 
of Record.14, 5  Legal lots of record are defined as lots resulting from a subdivision of property in 
which the final map has been recorded in cities and towns, or in which the parcel map has been 
recorded in Parcels and Maps or Record of Surveys.  Lots of record may include vacant lots on 
vacant parcels, vacant lots on improved parcels, and also included remodels on existing 
improved, non-vacant parcels. Ultimately, not all legal lots are buildable. While the District is 
the source of the 1,181 AFA estimated demands for the lots of record, the number was lifted 
from the 2009 Coastal Water Project environmental impact report.  
 
Tourism Bounce-Back:  The 500 AFA for economic recovery was originally proffered by the 
hospitality industry to handle a recovery of occupancy rates in the tourist industry in a post-
World Trade Center tragedy setting. 15, 5  The industry felt that their most successful occupancy 
rates were in the three years prior to September 11, 2001 and felt 500 AFA would provide a 
buffer for a return to that level. 

Pebble Beach Buildout:  Ever since the State Water Board issued Order 95-10 and the Cease and 
Desist Order (CDO) it has recognized the Pebble Beach Company’s investment in the 
Reclamation Project and the Company’s right to serve its entitlements from the Carmel River.  
However, the State Water Board has stated a desire to have the Pebble Beach entitlements 
shifted away from the river and be satisfied by a new supply.  At the time of the 2012 
Application, the Pebble Beach company had approximately 325 AF of entitlements still 
available. 
 
Current Water Demand Assumptions 
 
The original MPWSP desalination project plant sizing was done over seven years ago in 2012.  
With the passage of time and the opportunity to perform deeper research, it is possible to 
revisit the assumptions about consumer demand for water in the current context. 
 
Average Current Customer Demand:  Figure 1 on the next page shows water production for 
customer service, a proxy for customer demand, for the past twenty-year period.  As can be 
seen, demand has been in decline.  For water year 2019 to date, demand remains 110 AF below 
2018 levels, so this trend has not reversed. 
 

                                                           
13 CPUC Decision 18-09-017, September 13, 2018, page 68 
14 Direct Testimony of Richard C. Svindland, April 23, 2012, pages 22, 37. 
15 Direct Testimony of Richard C. Svindland, April 23, 2012, page 37 



 
 

Figure 1 
Annual Water Production for Customer Service (Demand) 

Last 20 Years 
(Acre-Feet) 

 
Table 3 shows how the 10-, 5-, and 3-year average demand compares to Cal-Am’s most recent 
12,350 AFA assumption. 
 

Table 3 
Alternate Average Customer Demand Assumptions 

(Acre-Feet) 
 

Period Amount Difference to 
Cal-Am # 

Cal-Am Assumption 12,350  
10-Year Average - Actual 11,232 1,118 
5-Year Average - Actual 10,109 2,241 
3-Year Average - Actual 9,788 2,562 

 

 8,000

 9,000

 10,000

 11,000

 12,000

 13,000

 14,000

 15,000

 16,000

19
99

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18



 
 

The trend is similar for peak month demand: 10-year maximum month through 2018 was 1,111 
AF, the 5-year max was 966 AF, and the 3-year max was 950 AF, requiring approximately 15 
MGD of firm capacity.  By comparison, the maximum month at the time the plant was first sized 
was 1,532 AF.  The proposed desalination plant, in conjunction with the other production 
facilities can meet peak month/peak day requirements.  Pure Water Monterey expansion adds 
4 new extraction wells, two for production and two for redundancy.  Preliminary analysis shows 
that peak month/peak day can be met with both supply alternatives. 
 
Hence, the case could be made that the average customer demand assumption in the sizing of 
the MPWSP should be 9,788 to 11,232 AFA.   
 
Legal Lots of Record:  The 1,181 number is derived from the October 2009 Coastal Water 
Project Final Environmental Impact Report and references a 2001 District analysis as the source. 
It was actually sourced from a Land Systems Group Phase II February 2002 interim draft report 
that used the number 1,181.438 AF.  A calculation error was corrected and the report was 
subsequently updated in June 2002 and the number was revised to 1,210.964.  However, the 
earlier number seems to have been used going forward.  Both versions did not include vacant 
lots on improved parcels in the unincorporated County.  Table 4 shows how the corrected 
number was calculated. 

Table 4 
Legal Lots of Record Estimates (2002) 
Unincorporated County Not Included 

(Acre-Feet) 
 

Type of Parcel Amount 
Vacant Lots on Vacant Parcels 729.9 
Vacant Lots on Improved Parcels 288.2 
Anticipated Remodels (10 years) 192.8 
   Total 1,210.9 

 
Table 5 

Assumptions Driving the Legal Lots of Record Conclusions 
 

 
Category 

Units on 
Vacant 
Parcels 

Units on 
Improved 

Parcels 

Estimated 
Number of 
Remodels 

Water 
Use 

Factor 

Total 
Water 
Usage 

Single Family Dwellings 688 152  0.286 AF 240.2 
Multi-Family Dwellings 846 204  0.134 AF 140.7 
Commercial/Industrial 556 288  0.755 AF 637.2 
Residential Remodels   3765 0.029 AF 109.2 
Commercial Remodels   513 0.163 AF 83.6 
 2,091 789 4,278  1,210.9 



 
 

 
Since the study, the District’s conservation programs have resulted in reductions in the average 
water use factors.  For example, with single-family water use at 0.2 AFA, multifamily use at 1.2 
AFA, and commercial customer connections averaging 0.66 AFA (2016 data), these changes 
alone would reduce the total above by 167.1 AF.   Further, some of these lots may have been 
built upon, others determined unbuildable.  Many of the remodels have likely occurred.  
General plans have been rewritten and housing elements recalculated.  These factors taken 
together could result in another 150 AF reduction in the assumption. 
 
Compared to the 1,890 units from the 2002 Land Systems Group study shown above, going 
forward, AMBAG’s 2014 Regional Growth Forecast showed 2,231 additional housing units 
expected in the 6 cities between 2020 and 2035.  Assuming another 120 in the unincorporated 
county, and 2/3rds single-family and 1/3rd multifamily, with single-family water use at 0.2 AFA 
and multifamily use at 1.2 AFA, this equates to 407 AFA over a 15-year period.  Most of 
AMBAG’s projected growth occurs in Seaside and Del Rey Oaks, which if slated for the former 
Fort Ord would not be served by Cal-Am.  Unfortunately, it is not possible to accurately 
distinguish the Cal-Am served housing growth from the non-Cal-Am housing growth, but the 
407 AFA likely overstates the Cal-Am growth.  The AMBAG assumptions appear consistent with 
the Land Systems Group estimates. 
 
Hence, the case could be made that the legal lots of record demand assumption in the sizing of 
the MPWSP should be 864 to 1,014 AFA.  
 
Tourism Bounce-Back:  As stated earlier, the 500 AFA for economic recovery was originally 
suggested by the hospitality industry to account for a recovery of occupancy rates in the tourist 
industry in a post-World Trade Center tragedy setting.5, 15  Representatives of the Coalition of 
Peninsula Businesses indicated in testimony that the hospitality industry was hurt by the recent 
recession and that occupancy rates needs to increase by 12 to 15 percent to re-attain the levels 
of decades ago.16  It is true that the Salinas-Monterey market was one of five California 
markets, out of 22, to experience double digit declines after the events of 2001, from 71.8% in 
2000 to 63.0% in 2001.17  It is also true that the decline persisted and was still down when the 
MPWSP desalination plant was sized, with occupancy rates of 62.8% in 2011-12 and 64.1% in 
2012-13.18  However, occupancy rates have since recovered with no notable increase in water 
demand.  Hotel occupancy locally is back at approximately 72% and is estimated by Smith 
Travel Research to be higher for better quality properties on the Monterey Peninsula.19, 20  The 
commercial sector water demand is shown below in Table 6 for the year prior to the World 

                                                           
16 Testimony of John Narigi (to CPUC), September 29, 2017, page 5 
17 HVS San Francisco, August 19, 2003 
18 Monterey County Convention and Visitors Bureau Annual Report 2012-13, page ii 
19 Fiscal Analysis of the Proposed Hotel Bella Project, Applied Development Economics, April 6, 2016 
20 Cannery Row Company, January 9, 2019 



 
 

Trade Center tragedy, the year of the MPWSP plant sizing, and the most recent year.  As can be 
seen, commercial demand, which is heavily influenced by the hospitality industry remains in 
decline, despite the already absorbed “bounce-back” in occupancy rates. 
 

Table 6 
Commercial Sector Water Demand 

Selected Years 
(Acre-Feet) 

Year Demand 
2001 3,387 
2012 2,770 
2018 2,442 

 
There is a secular change in commercial demand that is due to permanent demand reductions 
resulting from targeted rebate programs, conservation standards for the visitor-serving sector 
since 2002, mandatory conservation standards for other commercial businesses instituted in 
2013, and commercial inspection/enforcement by the District.  A “bounce-back” of 500 AFY 
would represent an increase in water use demand of 20% in the entire commercial sector, not 
just the hospitality industry.  The District does not view this as likely in the near-term, nor due 
to a return to higher occupancy rates. 
 
Hence, the case could be made that the tourism bounce-back demand assumption in the sizing 
of the MPWSP should be 100 to 250 AFA.  
 
Pebble Beach Buildout:  As cited earlier, at the time of the 2012 Application, the Pebble Beach 
company had approximately 325 AF of entitlements still available and that number was added 
to the MPWSP sizing needs.  However, the final environmental impact report certified in 2012 
envisioned 145 AFA for the buildout projects and 154 AFA in other entitlement demand.21   
 
The other entitlement demand goes away when a new water supply comes online because 
homeowners will have no reason to pay $250,000 per AF for an entitlement when connecting 
directly to Cal-Am is possible when the moratorium on new service connections is lifted.  In the 
ten years since the CDO was imposed, Pebble Beach entitlement water demand has averaged 
4.9 AF added each year.  It is reasonable to assume only another 15 AFA during the next three 
years before a permanent water supply is online. 
 
The project buildout is 145 AFA not 325 AFA used in project sizing.  Further, the buildout 
number includes estimated water use that may never materialize in decades, if ever.  Table 7 
shows the elements that comprise the Pebble Beach buildout. 
                                                           
21 Pebble Beach Final Environmental Impact report (FEIR), April 2012, Appendix H “Water Supply and Demand 
Information for Analysis” 



 
 

Table 7 
Components of Pebble Beach Buildout 

(Acre-Feet) 
 

Project Demand 
Lodge 13.11 
Inn at Spanish Bay 12.85 
Spyglass Hotel 30.59 
Area M Residential 10.00 
Other Residential 77.00 
Driving Range 0.33 
Roundabout 0.70 
   Total 144.58 

 
Two elements of the project warrant greater discussion:  “Other Residential” includes 66 single 
family residences at 1.0 AF each and 24 residences at 0.50 AF each (and a decrement of 1 AF in 
the total calculation for other reasons.)  District research in 2006 determined the average large 
lot Pebble Beach home utilized 0.42 AFA.  Building conservation standards have increased since 
then.  Many of the proposed homes are not utilized year-round.  The estimate could be 
overstated by one-third or more.  Spyglass Hotel is not currently being pursued and there are 
no plans to do so in the near-term.  The project could be a decade or two away, if ever. 
 
Hence, the case could be made that the Pebble Beach buildout demand assumption in the 
sizing of the MPWSP should be 103 to 160 AFA.  
 
Summary of Demand v. Supply 
 
Table 8 shows the range of demand estimates that have been established in the foregoing 
analysis.  These long-term demand estimates can be compared to existing current demand to 
determine how much water supply is needed.   
 

Table 8 
Range of Potential Demand Scenarios in MPWSP Sizing 

(Acre-Feet) 
 

Demand Component Current  
Project 

Revised 
High 

Revised 
Low 

Average Current Customer Demand 13,290 11,232 9,788 
Legal Lots of Record 1,181 1,014 864 
Tourism Bounce-Back 500 250 100 
Pebble Beach Buildout 325 160 103 
   Total Water Demand 15,296 12,656 10,855 



 
 

However, the ability of the Monterey Peninsula to generate or “absorb” the housing and 
commercial growth will help determine when such water supply is needed.  Figure 2 shows the 
past 20 years of market absorption of water demand based on water permits issued.  The 
average growth or absorption in water use was 12.7 AF per year.  The first decade preceded the 
CDO and was a period of relative economic stability, available property, no moratorium on new 
service connections, and lower water rates resulting in 16.4 AF per year of absorption.  The 
second decade was after the CDO and moratorium on service connections and understandably 
had a lower absorption rate of 9.1 AF per year.  
 

Figure 2 
Market Absorption of Water Demand 

Last 20 Years 
(Acre-Feet) 

 

 
By adopting assumptions about current demand and market absorption rates, it can be 
determined the sufficiency of certain supply alternatives over time.  In Figure 3, the current 
demand assumption of 10,109 AF (most recent 5-year average) is shown with three market 
absorption rates: (a) 16.4 AF per year (pre-CDO decade rate), (b) three times that rate, and (c) 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Absorption Rates 

1999-2018 12.7 AFA 

1999-2008 16.4 AFA 

2009-2018 9.1 AFA 



 
 

250 AF over the first five years on top of the pre-CDO rate.  These are also compared to the two 
supply alternatives in Table 1. 
 

Figure 3 
Market Absorption of Water Demand Compared to Water Supply 

Current Demand at 5-Year Average 
 (Acre-Feet) 

 
This chart shows that, assuming a starting current demand at the 5-year average, both water 
supply alternatives meet 30-year market absorption at the historical rate and 250 AF in the first 
5 years on top of the historical rate, and Pure Water Monterey expansion is sufficient until 2043 
at 3-times the historical absorption rate. 
 
Figure 4 below shows a current starting demand at the 3-year average and shows both supply 
alternatives meet all three absorption rates. 
 
In both cases, one can assume higher market absorption or one or two large scale 
developments in the first 5 years, but the general conclusions are not significantly changed. 
 
 
 

 9,000

 10,000

 11,000

 12,000

 13,000

 14,000

 15,000

 16,000

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

20
31

20
32

20
33

20
34

20
35

20
36

20
37

20
38

20
39

20
40

20
41

20
42

20
43

20
44

20
45

20
46

20
47

20
48

20
49

Water Supply with PWM Expansion

Water Supply with MPWSP Desalination 

250 AF Step then 16.4 AF per year 

16.4 AF per year 

3 X 



 
 

Figure 4 
Market Absorption of Water Demand Compared to Water Supply 

Current Demand at 3-Year Average 
 (Acre-Feet) 

 

 
 
Additional Factors Affecting Future Demand 
 
Cost:  The future water supply will significantly impact rates.  It is expected that the combined 
cost of new water supply and regular annual rate increases will almost double a residential 
ratepayer’s water bill by 2023.  Rules of price elasticity suggest the cost of water might dampen 
demand.  The cost of each major component of supply is shown below: 
 

Desalination Plant   $6,094 per acre-foot22 
Carmel River:       $271 per acre-foot23 
Seaside Basin:       $130 per acre-foot24 

                                                           
22 Attachment C-3 California American Water Company Advice Letter 1220 “Total Yr 1 Cost to Customer” $38.1 million, divided 
by 6,252 acre-feet per year 
23 MPWSP Model- V 2.1 submitted to CPUC; February 2018 and October 2017 versions, 6.4 MGD scenario, “Avoided Costs” 
worksheet 
24 MPWSP Model- V 2.1 submitted to CPUC; February 2018 and October 2017 versions, 6.4 MGD scenario, “Avoided Costs” 
worksheet 

 9,000

 10,000

 11,000

 12,000

 13,000

 14,000

 15,000

 16,000

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

20
31

20
32

20
33

20
34

20
35

20
36

20
37

20
38

20
39

20
40

20
41

20
42

20
43

20
44

20
45

20
46

20
47

20
48

20
49

Water Supply with PWM Expansion

Water Supply with MPWSP Desalination 

3 X 

250 AF Step then 16.4 AF per year 

16.4 AF per Year 



 
 

Pure Water Monterey:  $1,976 per acre-foot25 
PWM with Expansion:   $2,077 per acre-foot25 

 
Further, if the desalination plant capacity is not fully utilized, the cost per acre-foot rises due to 
the fixed costs, as shown below. 

Production by Desal Plant – AF 
           

6,252   
           

5,000   
           

4,300  

      
Variable Cost ($ Million) 7.8  6.2  5.4 
Fixed Cost ($ Million) 30.3  30.3  30.3 
Total Annual Cost to Customer 38.1  36.5  35.7 

      
Cost per Acre-Foot  $6,094    $7,308    $8,294  

 
The rate impact can be seen in Figure 5, below, which is calculated based on full utilization of 
the desalination plant. 
 

Figure 5 
Ratepayer Impacts of New Water Supply26 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Legislation:  On May 31, 2018, Governor Brown signed two bills which build on the ongoing 
efforts to “make water conservation a California way of life.” SB 606 (Hertzberg) and AB 1668 
(Friedman) reflect the work of many water suppliers, environmental organizations, and 
members of the Legislature.  The mandates will fall on urban water suppliers – not customers.   

                                                           
25 Presentation by Monterey One Water at June 27, 2019 Monterey Peninsula Regional Water Authority meeting 
26 “Your Rates Are Changing” California American Water mailer, April 2019 and “Notice of General Rate Case 
Application filed” July 2019 



 
 

  
Specifically, the bills call for creation of new urban efficiency standards for indoor use, outdoor 
use, and water lost to leaks, as well as any appropriate variances for unique local conditions.  
Each urban retail water agency will annually, beginning November 2023, calculate its own 
objective, based on the water needed in its service area for efficient indoor residential water 
use, outdoor residential water use, commercial, industrial and institutional (CII) irrigation with 
dedicated meters, and reasonable amounts of system water loss, along with consideration of 
other unique local uses (i.e., variances) and “bonus incentive,” or credit, for potable water 
reuse, using the standards adopted by the State Water Board.  
 
The indoor water use standard will be 55 gallons per person per day (gallons per capita daily, or 
GPCD) until January 2025; the standard will become stronger over time, decreasing to 50 GPCD 
in January 2030. For the water use objective, the indoor use is aggregated across population in 
an urban water supplier’s service area, not each household.   Presently, the average June 2014-
May 2019 gallons per capita per day for the Cal-Am Monterey system is 57 gpcd.  Hence, 
existing users are unlikely to increase their water consumption with the availability of new 
water supply. 
 
Principal Conclusions 
 

• Either supply option can meet the long-term needs of the Monterey Peninsula 
 

• Either supply option is sufficient to lift the CDO 
 

• The long-term needs of the Monterey Peninsula may be less than previously thought 
 

• Several factors will contribute to pressure on decreasing per capita water use 
 

 

 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\DiscussionItems\09\Item-9-Exh-A.docx 





ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING 
 
10. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF THE MONTEREY PENINSULA, CARMEL BAY 

AND SOUTH MONTEREY BAY INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER 
MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE 

 
Meeting Date: September 16, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
 
Prepared By: Larry Hampson Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 
General Counsel Review:  No 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  Exempt under CEQA § 15262 

 
SUMMARY:  The Monterey Peninsula planning region is eligible to receive up to $4.2 million in 
grant funds from Proposition 1.  MPWMD is the lead agency in the region and is currently 
preparing a grant application to the Department of Water Resources (DWR) for $2,370,940 in 
project implementation funds.  However, one of the criteria for receiving funds from DWR for 
project implementation is to adopt an Integrated Regional Water Management Plan (IRWM Plan) 
that meets the 2016 DWR Guidelines.  The IRWM Plan adopted by the MPWMD Board in 2014 
does not meet the 2016 Guidelines.  Over the past 12 months, the Big Sur Land Trust and the 
District, with assistance from Denise Duffy & Associates, have undertaken an update of the IRWM 
Plan with the cooperation and support of local stakeholders. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends that the Board: 
  
1. Receive public comment on the Draft Update of the Monterey Peninsula, Carmel Bay and 

South Monterey Bay Integrated Regional Water Management Plan. 
 
2. Direct the General Manager to consider and address the comments of the MPWMD Board 

and public in the Final Update to the IRWM Plan. 
 
3. Make a finding that the IRWM Plan is exempt from further environmental review under 

Section 15262 of the California Environmental Quality Act. 
 
4.  Approve Resolution 2019-14 adopting the IRWM Plan (attached as Exhibit 10-A). 
 
5. Authorize the General Manager to make any minor or non-substantive modifications to the 

IRWM Plan presented to the Board in order to accommodate clarifications requested by 
other adopting entities and the Department of Water Resources. 

 
6. Authorize the General Manager to amend the list of projects eligible for inclusion in future 

grant applications by the planning region. 



DISCUSSION:  The IRWM Plan is a comprehensive guide for developing, prioritizing, and 
implementing coordinated water resource plans and projects.  It is a “living document” intended 
to be amended from time to time to meet the planning Region’s changing needs and priorities, 
incorporate new developments in water resource management, and to respond to project 
solicitations from state and federal funding agencies. 
 
The Draft IRWM Plan Update can be downloaded at: 
 
https://www.mpwmd.net/resources/irwm-program/ 
 
IRWM, the Central Coast Funding Area, and the Monterey Peninsula Region  
Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) is a collaborative effort to manage all aspects of 
water resources in a region. IRWM crosses jurisdictional, watershed, and political boundaries; 
involves multiple agencies, stakeholders, individuals, and groups; and attempts to address the 
issues and differing perspectives of all the entities involved through mutually beneficial solutions.  
 
IRWM Plans are intended to provide a framework for agencies, non-profit groups, for-profit 
corporations and other stakeholders with missions and responsibilities to work together on 
common water management strategies, objectives, goals and projects.  As such, the IRWM Plan 
takes into consideration the many plans and policies currently being implemented for water 
resource management, analyzes how these are interrelated and shows how projects and programs 
can have multiple benefits when grouped together.  The focus of the IRWM Plan is to improve 
management of local water resources by proposing to implement and monitor a suite of projects 
that taken as a whole: 
 

• incorporate water management strategies required under State IRWM guidelines; 
• meet objectives and goals set by stakeholders; 
• accomplish regional priorities; 
• are technically and financially feasible; and 
• assist in meeting Statewide priorities. 

 
The Department of Water Resources (DWR) is charged by the legislature with disbursing State 
funds for the IRWM program and has divided the state into 12 hydrologic region-based funding 
areas and 48 sub-regions for planning purposes.  Locally, the Central Coast Funding Area (CCFA) 
is comprised of coastal watersheds in the counties of Santa Cruz, Santa Clara, San Benito, 
Monterey, San Luis Obispo and Santa Barbara.  Within this area, there are six IRWM Plans 
covering the funding area (see figure below).  The Monterey Peninsula, Carmel Bay, and South 
Monterey Bay planning region was initially defined in 2005 after discussions with MCWRA and 
formally designated by DWR in 2009.  Since 2002, Californians have approved $17.5 billion for 
water bonds that have included IRWM grant funds of approximately $2 billion for planning, 
implementation, and stormwater flood management throughout California.   
 
DWR issues updates to its IRWM Program Guidelines (Guidelines) in response to State 
legislation.  The Guidelines establish how to develop an IRWM Plan and what needs to be 
included.  The MPWMD Board adopted the first Monterey Peninsula IRWM Plan in November 
2007, which met Proposition 50 IRWM standards.  After Proposition 84 was approved in 2006, 

https://www.mpwmd.net/resources/irwm-program/


the District secured a grant from DWR in 2010 to update the IRWM Plan and adopted an updated 
plan in June 2014. 

 
Proposition 1 Funds 
 
Proposition 1, passed 
in 2016, provides $43 
million in grant funds 
to the CCFA.  By 
agreement among the 
CCFA regions to share 
these funds equitably, 
the Monterey 
Peninsula region share 
is $4.2 million. 
 
In 2018, DWR funded 
$466,000 for local 
Disadvantaged 
Community projects.  
MPWMD will be 
requesting $2.4 
million in the first 
round of general 
implementation 
projects (the current 
round).  The 
remainder of funds 
would be awarded in 
future grant rounds.   
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Monterey Peninsula planning region is the smallest geographical planning region in the 
Central Coast  area at approximately 347 square miles.  It consists of coastal watershed areas 
draining to  Carmel Bay and south Monterey Bay between Pt. Lobos on the south and Sand City 
on the north.  Its 38.3-mile crenulated coast includes three Areas of Special Biological Significance 
(Pt. Lobos, Carmel Bay, and Pacific Grove), several Marine Protected Areas, and a portion of the 
Monterey Bay National Marine Sanctuary.  The area encompasses the six Monterey Peninsula 
Cities of Carmel-by-the Sea, Del Rey Oaks, Pacific Grove, Monterey, Sand City, Seaside, and 
extends into portions of the unincorporated area of Monterey County at the former Fort Ord, in the 
Carmel Highlands, Pebble Beach, the inland areas of Carmel Valley and the Laguna Seca area. 
 



At the time of adoption of the 2014 IRWM Plan, the Regional Water Management Group, which 
guides and implements the IRWM Plan, consisted of the following entities: 
 

• Big Sur Land Trust (BSLT), a 501 (c) 3 organization; 
• City of Monterey; 
• City of Seaside 
• Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency (MRWPCA – now Monterey One 

Water); 
• Monterey County Water Resources Agency (MCWRA); 
• Marina Coast Water District (MCWD); 
• Resource Conservation District of Monterey County; and 
• Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD). 

 
 
Proposition 1 IRWM Plan Update At their June 23, 2014 meeting, the MPWMD Board of 
Directors adopted a “Monterey Peninsula, Carmel Bay and South Monterey Bay Integrated 
Regional Water Management Plan Update” (2014 IRWM Plan) that met Proposition 84 
requirements.  With the passage of Proposition 1 (Prop 1) in 2016, IRWM Plan requirements have 
been revised and for the region to receive Prop 1 implementation grant funds, the 2014 IRWM 
Plan must be updated to meet the new standards. 
 
As described in the draft IRWM Plan, several stakeholder meetings were held to receive input and 
guide MPWMD staff and consultants in preparing the update.  The IRWM Plan is a comprehensive 
guide for developing, prioritizing, and implementing coordinated water resource plans and 
projects.  As such, it is a “living document” that is intended to be amended from time to time to 
meet the planning Region’s continually-evolving water resource management needs and related 
project priorities.  The IRWM Plan update contains planning objectives and identifies potential 
projects that address the Region’s identified needs in the areas of water supply, water quality, flood 
protection, water-related environmental enhancement, and other state-mandated and optional 
planning categories.   
 
During discussions with stakeholders, the following key changes were agreed upon: 

• remove the requirement that a member of the Regional Water Management Group have 
statutory authority over water resources or provide a unique service or benefit not  provided 
by other members of the RWMG; add the following entities to the RWMG: 

 
o California State University Monterey Bay 
o Carmel Area Wastewater District 
o Carmel River Watershed Conservancy 
o Carmel Valley Association 
o City of Carmel-by-the-Sea 
o City of Del Rey Oaks 
o City of Pacific Grove 
o City of Sand City 
o City of Seaside 
o Monterey County Resource Management Agency 



• incorporate the Stormwater Resource Plan (SRP) for the region into the IRWM Plan as an 
Appendix; however, projects in the SRP would be prioritized only if the project proponent 
completed a detailed Project Information Form 

• split the Flood Protection/Erosion Prevention Goal into separate Goals 
• add Watershed Management as a Goal   
• several Objectives were changed; a TAC was appointed to refine Objectives; a record of 

the recommended changes is contained in Appendix 14 to the 2019 IRWM Plan Update; 
(note that objectives serve to guide project proponents in the development of projects, but 
also have a practical aspect when the RWMG scores and prioritizes projects); significant 
changes for the 2019 update include: 

o water for environmental flows was added as an objective under Water Supply 
o protecting coastal infrastructure from flooding as a result of sea level rise and 

promoting floodplain restoration were added as Objectives under Flood Protection 
o three new Objectives were added to address Coastal and Streamside Erosion 

including managed retreat, restoring natural stream function and preventing 
downcutting in the Carmel River 

o four Objectives were added under the Watershed Management Goal to restore the 
natural flow of water and sediment and fire frequency in headwater forests 

o fuel management to prevent catastrophic wildfires was added as an Objective under 
Environmental Protection and Enhancement 

o the Objective of evaluation of Climate Change was changed to implementation of 
measures to mitigate effects of climate change 

• the region-specific GIS and Data Management System developed for the 2014 IRWM Plan 
Update was discontinued – portions of the hardware used for the system are obsolete and 
no longer supported by the providers; the region will rely on Central Coast and State 
databases  

 
A major change in DWR’s criteria for Prop 1 IRWM funding eligibility is the exclusion of projects 
that are required as mitigation of environmental impacts.  Thus, replacement water supply projects 
– one of the region’s top priorities – are not allowed in a grant application.  This includes Cal Am’s 
Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project, the Pure Water Monterey project, and the District’s 
Aquifer Storage and Recovery projects.   
 
It should be noted that MPWMD is the lead agency for development of the IRWMP and ensuring 
its execution.  However, the institutional structure of the RWMG allows for agencies to rotate as 
members of the RWMG and any agency in the RWMG can be a lead agency for a grant application 
if a specific funding source is identified and the RWMG designates another lead agency. 
 
During the project solicitation phase, five detailed project proposals were received and nine  
concept proposals were received.  Of these, four project proposals are eligible to apply for an 
implementation grant while concept proposals must be developed further.1  Details of the project 
solicitation process are contained in IRWM Plan Chapter 6.   
 
CEQA COMPLIANCE:  California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines for Section 

                                                 
1. Cal Am’s project proposal for the Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project was determined to be ineligible. 



15262 “Feasibility and Planning Studies” state as follows: 

“A project involving only feasibility or planning studies for possible future actions which the 
agency, board, or commission has not approved, adopted, or funded does not require the 
preparation of an EIR or negative declaration but does require consideration of environmental 
factors.” 

The MPWMD Board was previously provided a full copy of the IRWM Plan Update under 
separate cover. 

It is MPWMD staff opinion that the evaluation of environmental factors contained in the IRWM 
Plan is adequate for this level of planning and that the Plan is exempt from further review under 
CEQA.  But additional specific environmental review may be required for individual projects. It 
will be the responsibility of each project sponsor to identify a Lead Agency and to comply with 
requirements for additional environmental review under CEQA. 

ADOPTION OF IRWM PLAN:  In order to be eligible for State IRWM implementation grant 
funds under the California voter-approved Proposition 1, the IRWM Plan must meet the 2016 
Guidelines and be adopted by the agencies that apply for grant funds.  MPWMD is the lead agency 
in the region and is currently preparing a grant application to DWR for $1,894,400.  Exhibit 
10-A Resolution No. 2019-14 to adopt the 2019 IRWM Plan is attached. 

EXHIBIT 
10-A Resolution No. 2019-14

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\PublicHearings\10\Item-10.docx 



 
 
 
 
 

 
5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA  93940        P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA  93942-0085 

831-658-5600        Fax  831-644-9560        http://www.mpwmd.net  
 

 

EXHIBIT 10-A 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-14 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

TO ADOPT THE MONTEREY PENINSULA, CARMEL BAY, AND SOUTH MONTEREY BAY 
INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE  

 
WHEREAS, the State of California desires to foster Integrated Regional Water 

Management (IRWM) planning and encourages local public, non-profit, and private (for profit) 

entities to define planning regions appropriate for managing water resources and to integrate 

strategies within these planning regions; and  

WHEREAS, the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD or District) 

is charged with the responsibility to manage, augment, and protect water resources for the benefit 

of the community and the environment within the District boundaries; and 

WHEREAS, MPWMD has facilitated the formation of an IRWM planning Region with 

water resources that are linked hydrologically, geographically, and ecologically; and  

WHEREAS the planning Region consists of the six Monterey Peninsula cities of Carmel-

by-the Sea, Del Rey Oaks, Pacific Grove, Monterey, Sand City, Seaside, and extends into portions 

of the unincorporated area of Monterey County in the Carmel Highlands, Pebble Beach and the 

inland areas of Carmel Valley and the Laguna Seca area; and  

WHEREAS water resources management authority and interests in the planning Region 

are currently distributed among various public agencies and other entities with a range of legal 

powers, regulatory responsibilities and interests; and 

WHEREAS, sensible water resources planning and management frequently requires 

actions in multiple jurisdictions; and 

WHEREAS, MPWMD recognizes that continued coordination is necessary among local 

entities with responsibilities and interests in managing water resources; and  

http://www.mpwmd.net/


Draft –MPWMD Resolution No. 2019-XX – Adopt the Monterey Peninsula, Carmel Bay, and South Monterey Bay 
Integrated Regional Water Management Plan Update 

 
  

WHEREAS, in accordance with the July 2016 Proposition 1 (The Water Quality, Supply, 

and Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014) Integrated Regional Water Management Grant 

Program Guidelines by the Department of Water Resources, MPWMD undertook a collaborative 

planning effort with the stakeholders in the planning Region including public agencies, water 

providers, non-profit entities, residential water users, community, recreation, and environmental 

organizations to formulate water management goals, strategies, and objectives for the planning 

Region and to prioritize projects that address watershed and regional issues; and  

WHEREAS this planning effort has resulted in the Monterey Peninsula, Carmel Bay, and 

South Monterey Bay Integrated Regional Water Management Plan Update to achieve multiple 

benefits, encompass multiple watersheds and groundwater basins, meet short- and long-term water 

resource needs, coordinate with other IRWM Plans, and address state and federal priorities; and   

WHEREAS, the IRWM Plan is a living document, reviewed and updated over time; and 

Whereas, the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District Board of Directors held a public 

hearing on September 16th, 2019 to receive public input on the Draft IRWM Plan Update; and   

WHEREAS, the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District Board of Directors 

reviewed the Draft IRWM Plan Update with its staff and the general public at its regular Board 

meeting on September 16th, 2019.  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Monterey Peninsula Water 

Management District hereby adopts the Monterey Peninsula, Carmel Bay, and South Monterey 

Bay Integrated Regional Water Management Plan Update as a voluntary document that provides 

broadly supported, identified goals, objectives, strategies, and projects to meet the integrated water 

needs of the people and the environment within the planning Region. 

 On a motion by Director ________ and second by Director _______ the foregoing 
resolution is duly adopted this 16th day of September 2019 by the following votes. 
 
 AYES:  
  
 NAYS:  
 
 ABSENT:   

 
 
 
 
 



Draft –MPWMD Resolution No. 2019-XX – Adopt the Monterey Peninsula, Carmel Bay, and South Monterey Bay 
Integrated Regional Water Management Plan Update 

 
  

 I, David J. Stoldt, Secretary to the Board of Directors of the Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District, hereby certify that the foregoing is a resolution duly adopted on the 16th   
day of September 2019. 

 
 Witness my hand and seal of the Board of Directors this ___ day of ____ 2019. 
 

       
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\PublicHearings\10\Item-10-Exh-A.docx 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





 
ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING 
 
11. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2019-12 MODIFYING RULE 

160 – REGULATORY WATER PRODUCTION TARGETS FOR CALIFORNIA 
AMERICAN WATER SYSTEMS 

 
Meeting Date: September 16, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
 
Prepared By: Jonathan Lear Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 
General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  Exempt from environmental review per SWRCB Order Nos. 95-10 
and 2016-0016, and the Seaside Basin Groundwater Basin adjudication decision, as 
amended and Section 15268 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines, as a ministerial project; Exempt from Section 15307, Actions by Regulatory 
Agencies for Protection of Natural Resources. 

 
SUMMARY:  District Rule 160 specifies the regulatory water production targets that are used in 
the District’s Expanded Water Conservation and Standby Rationing Plan to trigger higher stages 
of water conservation to facilitate California American Water (Cal-Am) compliance with the 
production limits set by State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) Orders 95-10 and 2016-
0016 and the Seaside Groundwater Basin adjudication decision, as amended.  Specifically, Table 
XV-1 in Exhibit 11-A shows monthly and year-to-date at month-end targets for all Cal-Am 
systems that derive their source of supply or rely on production offsets from the Monterey 
Peninsula Water Resource System (MPWRS).  Similarly, Table XV-2 in Exhibit 11-A breaks out 
monthly and year-to-date at month-end targets for Cal-Am satellite systems that derive their source 
of supply from the Laguna Seca Subarea of the Seaside Groundwater Basin, which is part of the 
MPWRS.  It should be noted that in WY 2020, the Seaside Adjudication decision lowers the limit 
in the satellite systems to 0 Acre Feet, however the compliance of CalAm with the Adjudication 
decision limits are calculated using production limits set for the entire Basin.  In addition, Table 
XV-3 in Exhibit 11-A breaks out monthly and year-to-date at month-end targets for Cal-Am 
Carmel River system sources and is included to provide additional clarification as to the production 
target maximums for this component of the MPWRS. 
 
Rule 160 authorizes modifications to Tables XV-1, XV-2 and XV-3 to account for changes in the 
amount of water that Cal-Am is allowed to divert from the Carmel River System under the 
pertinent SWRCB Orders and the amount of water that Cal-Am is allowed to produce from the 
Seaside Groundwater Basin under the Seaside Basin Decision, as administered by the Seaside 
Basin Watermaster.  Any modifications to these tables must be made by Board resolution. 
 
Resolution 2019-12 (Exhibit 11-A) modifies Tables XV-1, XV-2 and XV-3 of Rule 160 to account 
for the projected change in allowable diversions by Cal-Am from the Carmel River and Seaside 
Groundwater Basins for Water Year 2020.   
    



RECOMMENDATION:  District staff recommends adoption of Resolution 2019-12 (Exhibit 
11-A) modifying Rule 160. 
  
EXHIBIT 
11-A Resolution 2019-12 Modifying Rule 160 – Regulatory Water Production Targets for 

California American Water Systems 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\PublicHearings\11\Item-11.docx 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 
 
 
 

 
5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA  93940        P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA  93942-0085 

831-658-5600        Fax  831-644-9560        http://www.mpwmd.net  
 

 
 

EXHIBIT 11-A 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-12         
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT  
MODIFYING RULE 160 – REGULATORY PRODUCTION TARGETS FOR 

CALIFORNIA AMERCIAN WATER SYSTEMS   
 

WHEREAS, the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District has developed a set of 
rules to facilitate compliance by California American Water systems with the regulatory and legal 
water production limits set by the State Water Resources Control Board and the Seaside Basin 
Adjudication as administered by the Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster; 
 

WHEREAS, District Rule 160 specifies the regulatory water production targets that are 
used to trigger higher stages of water conservation to ensure compliance with these legal and 
regulatory water production limits; 
 

WHEREAS, these limits are subject to change by action of the State Water Resources 
Control Board and Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster;  
 

WHEREAS, the State Water Resources Control Board adopted Order WR 2016-0016 on 
July 19, 2016, which requires California American Water to divert no more than 8,310 acre-feet 
in Water Year 2020 from its Carmel River system sources;  
 

WHEREAS, the Monterey County Superior Court adopted an Amended Decision in the 
Seaside Groundwater Basin Adjudication on February 9, 2007 (California American Water v. City 
of Seaside, et al., Case No. M66343), which requires California American Water to divert no more 
than 1,820 acre-feet from the Coastal Subareas and 0 acre-feet from the Laguna Seca Subarea of 
the Seaside Groundwater Basin in Water Year 2020;  
 

WHEREAS, the Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster has not yet determined the 
amount of carryover credit, if any, that California American Water has from Water Year 2017 that 
will be available for diversion in Water Year 2020; and  
 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to modify the monthly and year-to-date at month-end water 
production targets in Tables XV-1, XV-2 and XV-3 to reflect the projected quantities of production 
available to California American Water for diversion from the Carmel River and Seaside 
Groundwater Basins for Water Year 2020.  
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.mpwmd.net/


 
Draft MPWMD Resolution No. 2019-12– Modifying Rule 160, Regulatory Water Production Targets -- Page 2 of 2 

 

 
  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
1. District staff shall modify Tables XV-1, XV-2 and XV-3 of District Rule 160 to reflect the 

projected quantities of production available to California American Water for diversion 
from the Carmel River and Seaside Groundwater Basins for Water Year 2020.  

 
2. Specifically, District staff shall replace the monthly and year-to-date at month-end values 

presently shown in Tables XV-1, XV-2 and XV-3 of Rule 160 with the monthly and year-
to-date at month-end values shown on the attached tables (Attachment 1). 
 

   
On motion of Director ____________, and second by Director _____________, the foregoing 
resolution is duly adopted this 16th day of September 2019, by the following votes: 
 

AYES: 
 

NAYES: 
 

ABSENT: 
 

I, David J. Stoldt, Secretary of the Board of Directors of the MPWMD, hereby certify that 
the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of a resolution duly adopted on the 16th day of 
September 2019. 
 

Witness my hand and seal of the Board of Directors, this ______ day of September, 2019. 
 
 

__________________________________ 
      David J. Stoldt, Secretary to the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\PublicHearings\11\Item-11-Exh-A.docx 



Table XV-1
Regulatory Water Production Targets

for All California American Water Systems from Sources
Within the Monterey Peninsula Water Resource System

(All Values in Acre-Feet)

Month Monthly Year-to-Date
Target at Month-End Target

October 925 925
November 756 1,681
December 700 2,381

January 766 3,147
February 686 3,833
March 799 4,632
April 803 5,435
May 915 6,350
June 913 7,263
July 979 8,242

August 981 9,223
September 907 10,130

TOTAL 10,130 ---

Notes:
Monthly and year-to-date at month-end production targets are based on the annual production limit 
specified for the California American Water (Cal-Am) systems for Water Year (WY) 2020 from Carmel 
River sources per State Water Resources Control Board Order WR 2016-0016 (8,310 acre-feet) and 
adjusted annual production limits specified for the Cal-Am satellite systems from its Coastal Subarea 
sources (1,820 acre-feet) and Laguna Seca Subarea sources (0 acre-feet) of the Seaside Groundwater 
Basin per the Seaside Basin adjudication decision. These values do not include consideration of any 
carryover credit in the Seaside Basin for WY 2019.  This combined total (10,130 acre-feet) was 
distributed monthly based on Cal-Am's reported monthly average production for its main and satellite 
systems during the 2013 through 2018 period.

ATTACHMENT 1



Table XV-2
Regulatory Water Production Targets

for California American Water Satellite Systems from Sources
Within the Monterey Peninsula Water Resource System

(All Values in Acre-Feet)

Month Monthly Year-to-Date
Target at Month-End Target

October 0 0
November 0 0
December 0 0

January 0 0
February 0 0
March 0 0
April 0 0
May 0 0
June 0 0
July 0 0

August 0 0
September 0 0

TOTAL 0 ---

Notes:
Monthly and year-to-date at month-end production targets are based on the adjusted annual production 
limit specified for the California American Water (Cal-Am) satellite systems for Water Year 2020 from its 
sources in the Laguna Seca Subarea of the Seaside Groundwater Basin per the Seaside Basin adjudication 
decision.  This Laguna Seca Subarea total (0 acre-feet) was distributed monthly based on Cal-Am's 
reported monthly average production for its satellite systems during the 2013 through 2018 period.

ATTACHMENT 1



Table XV-3
Regulatory Water Production Targets

for California American Water Systems from Carmel River Sources
Within the Monterey Peninsula Water Resource System

(All Values in Acre-Feet)

Month Monthly Year-to-Date
Target at Month-End Target

October 759 759
November 620 1,378
December 575 1,954

January 629 2,583
February 562 3,145
March 656 3,800
April 659 4,459
May 750 5,210
June 749 5,958
July 803 6,761

August 805 7,566
September 744 8,310

TOTAL 8,310 ---

Notes:
Monthly and year-to-date at month-end production targets are based on the annual production limit 
specified for California American Water (Cal-Am) for Water Year (WY) 2020 from its Carmel River 
system sources per State Water Resources Control Board Order WR 2016-0016 (8,310 acre-feet). This 
amount was distributed monthly based on Cal-Am's reported monthly average production for its Main 
system sources during the 2013 through 2018 period.  These values incorporate consideration of 
thetriennial reductions specified for the Cal-Am systems in the Seaside Basin adjudication decision, in 
setting the monthly maximum production targets from each source as part of the MPWMD Quarterly 
Water Supply Budget Strategy.

ATTACHMENT 1





 

ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING 
 
12. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF OCTOBER THROUGH DECEMBER 2019 

QUARTERLY WATER SUPPLY STRATEGY AND BUDGET 
 
Meeting Date: September 16, 2019 Budgeted N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt, Program/ N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
 
Prepared By: Jonathan Lear Cost Estimate N/A 
 
General Counsel Review: N/A  
Committee Recommendation: N/A 
ESA Compliance: Consistent with the September 2001 and February 2009 
Conservation Agreements between the National Marine Fisheries Service and California 
American Water to minimize take of listed steelhead in the Carmel River and 
Consistent with SWRCB WR Order Nos. 95-10, 98-04, 2002-0002, and 2016-0016.  
 
SUMMARY:  The Board will accept public comment and take action on the October 
through December 2019 Quarterly Water Supply Strategy and Budget for California American 
Water’s (CalAm’s) Main and Satellite Water Distribution Systems (WDS), which are within 
the Monterey Peninsula Water Resources System (MPWRS). The proposed budgets, which are 
included as Exhibits 12-A and 12-B, show monthly production by source of supply that is 
required to meet projected customer demand in CalAm’s Main and Laguna Seca Subarea 
systems, i.e., Ryan Ranch, Bishop, and Hidden Hills, during the October through December 
2019 period. The proposed strategy and budget is designed to maximize the long-term 
production potential and protect the environmental quality of the Seaside Groundwater and 
Carmel River Basins. 

 
Exhibit 12-A shows the anticipated production by CalAm’s Main system for each production 
source and the actual production values for the water year to date through the end of December 
2019. Cal-Am’s annual Main system production for Water Year (WY) 2019 will not exceed 
10,130 acre-feet (AF). Sources available to meet customer demand are 1,820 AF from the 
Coastal Subareas of the Seaside Groundwater Basin as set by the Seaside Basin Adjudication 
Decision and 8,310 AF from the Carmel River as set by WRO 2016-16.  If production for 
September 2019 occurs as planned, CalAm will enter WY 2020 with approximately 700 AF of 
carry over ASR storage.  This carryover was planned at the WY 2019 4th quarter QWB meeting 
to provide an excess source of water in summer 2020 if conditions are drier than WY 2019. The 
schedule of production from the Carmel Valley Alluvial Aquifer is consistent with State Water 
Resources Control Board (SWRCB) Order Nos. 95-10, 98-04, 2002-0002, and 2016-0016. In 
compliance with WRO 2016-0016, any water diverted under these rights must be used to reduce 
unlawful diversion from the Carmel River Basin. 



Exhibit 12-B shows the anticipated production by CalAm’s Laguna Seca Subarea systems 
for each production source, and the actual production values for WY 2020 to date through the 
end of August 2020. According to the Seaside Basin Adjudication Decision, CalAm’s 
production has been reduced to 0 AF.  It is recognized that CalAm will need to produce water 
to serve its customers and this table is produced as a ministerial component of tracking the 
implementation of the Adjudication Decision.  CalAm has filed in the most recent general rate 
case with the California Public Utility Commission to intertie the main system and satellite 
systems to solve this issue. 

RECOMMENDATION:  The Board should receive public input, close the Public Hearing, 
and discuss the proposed quarterly water supply budget. District staff recommends adoption 
of the proposed budget. The budget is described in greater detail in Exhibit 12-C, Quarterly 
Water Supply Strategy Report: October – December 2019. 

BACKGROUND:  The Water Supply Strategy and Budget prescribes production within 
CalAm’s Main and Laguna Seca Subarea systems and is developed on a quarterly schedule.  
Staff from the District, CalAm, the National Marine Fisheries Services (NMFS), State 
Water Resources Control Board’s Division of Water Rights (SWRCB-DWR), and the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) cooperatively develop this strategy 
to comply with regulatory requirements and maximize the environmental health of the 
resource system while meeting customer demand.  To the greatest extent pumping in the 
Carmel Valley is minimized in the summer months and the Seaside wells are used to meet 
demand by recovering native water and banked Carmel River water.  Also, it was agreed that 
CalAm will operate its wells in the Lower Carmel Valley in a downstream to upstream order. 

When flows decline below 20 cfs at the District’s Don Juan Gage, CalAm will stop production 
from its Upper Carmel Valley Wells. The permitted diversion season for ASR is between 
December 1 and May 31.  ASR recovery will begin when flows decline to shift production 
away from the river.  This schedule is estimated with wet year streamflow conditions and daily 
demand for Carmel Valley.  There is also a projected goal of producing 25 AF of treated 
brackish groundwater from the Sand City Desalination Plant in each of these three months. 

Rule 101, Section B of the District Rules and Regulations requires that a Public Hearing be 
held at the time of determination of the District water supply management strategy. Adoption 
of the quarterly water supply strategy and budget is categorically exempt from the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requirements as per Article 19, Section 15301 
(Class 1). A Notice of Exemption will be filed with the Monterey County Clerk's office, 
pending Board action on this item. 

EXHIBITS 
12-A Quarterly Water Supply Strategy and Budget for Cal-Am Main System: October –

December 2019 
12-B Quarterly Water Supply Strategy and Budget for Cal-Am Subsystems: October –

December 2019 
12-C Quarterly Water Supply Strategy and Budget Report: October – December 2019

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\PublicHearings\12\Item-12.docx 



EXHIBIT 12-A

California American Water Main Distribution System

Quarterly Water Supply Strategy and Budget: October - December 2019

Proposed Production Targets by Source and Projected Use in Acre-Feet

SOURCE/USE MONTH YEAR-TO-DATE

Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Oct-18 - Aug-19% of YTD% of Annual Budget

Source

Carmel Valley  Aquifer
   Upper Subunits (95-10) 0 0 0 183 NA NA
   Lower Subunits (95-10) 550 380 576 7,392 96.0% 95.9%
   Lower Subunits (ASR) 0 0 145 532 NA NA
   Upper and Lower (Table 13) 0 0 24 153

Total 550 380 745
Total to count against CDO 550 380 745

Seaside Groundwater Basin
        Coastal Subareas 350 350 100 1,820 122.7% 100.0%
        ASR Recovery 0 0 0 367 91.6% 79.2%
        Sand City  Desalination 25 25 25 144 52.2% 47.9%

Total 375 375 125

Use
Customer Service (95-10 & SG 925 755 701
ASR Injection 0 0 145
Customer Service (Table 13) 0 0 24

Total 925 755 870

Notes:

1.  The annual budget period corresponds to the Water Year, which begins on October 1 and ends on September 
30 of the following Calendar Year.
2.  Total monthly  production for "Customer Service" in CAW's main sy stem was calculated by  multiply ing total 
annual production (10,130 AF) times the average percentage of annual production for October, November, and 
December 9.1%, 7.5%, and 6.7% , respectively ).  According to District Rule 160, the  annual production total was 
based on the assumption that production from the Coastal Subareas of the Seaside Groundwater Basin would not 
exceed 1,820 AF and production from Carmel River sources would not exceed 8,310 AF in WY 2019.  The 
average production percentages were based on monthly  data for customer service from WY 2013 to 2018.
3. Anticipated production for ASR injection is based on an average diversion rate of approximately  4,500 gallons 
per minute (gpm) or 19.9 AF per day  from CAW's sources in the Carmel River Basin. "Total" monthly  CAW 
"Use" includes water for customer service and water for injection into the Seaside Basin. 
4.  The production targets for CAW's wells in the Upper Subunits of the Carmel Valley  Aquifer are set at 0 
assuming low flow periods. 
5. The production target for CAW's wells in the Seaside Coastal Subareas in December is based on the 
assumption that sufficient flow will occur in the Carmel River at the targeted levels, to support ASR injection.  It 
is planned that Coastal Subarea pumping will not occur, or will be proportionally  reduced, if ASR injection does 
not occur at targeted levels.
6.  The production targets for CAW's wells in the Seaside Coastal Subareas are based on the need for CAW to 
produce its full native water allocation during WY 2018 to be in compliance with SWRCB WRO No 2016-0016. 
7.  It should be noted that monthly  totals for Carmel Valley  Aquifer sources may  be different than those shown in 
MPWMD Rule 160, Table XV-3.  These differences result from monthly  target adjustments needed to be 
consistent with SWRCB WRO 98-04, which describes how the Cal-Am Seaside Wellfield is to be used to offset 
production in Carmel Valley  during low-flow periods.  Adjustments are also  made to the Quarterly  Budgets to 
ensure that compliance is achieved on an annual basis with MPWMD Rule 160 totals.
8.  Table 13 values reflect source/use estimates based on SWRCB Permit 21330, which allows diversions from 
the CVA for "in Basin use" (3.25 AFD) when flows in the River exceed threshold values.
9.  According to SWRCB WRO No 2016-0016, the first 600 AF diverted from the CVAA will count as 
diversions against the CDO limit.

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\PublicHearings\12\Item-12-Exh-A.xlsx





EXHIBIT 12-B

California American Water Laguna Seca Subarea Distribution Systems

Quarterly Water Supply Strategy and Budget: October - December 2018

Proposed Production Targets by Source and Projected Use in Acre-Feet

SOURCE/USE MONTH YEAR-TO-DATE

Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Oct-18 - Aug-19 % of YTD % of Annual Budget

Source

Seaside Groundwater Basin
        Laguna Seca Subarea 0 0 0 263 547.9% 547.9%

Other 0 0 0

Use
       Customer Service 30 30 24

263

Notes:
1.  The annual budget period corresponds to the Water Year, which begins on October 1 and ends on September 30 
of the following Calendar Year.
2.  Total monthly  production for "Customer Service" in CAW's Laguna Seca Subarea sy stems was calculated by 
multiply ing total annual production (0 AF) times the average percentage of annual production October, November, 
and December (9.4%, 7.0%, and 6.2%, respectively).  The annual production total was based on the assumption that 
production from the Laguna Seca Subarea of the Seaside Groundwater Basin would not exceed 0 AF. The average 
production percentages were based on monthly  data for customer service from WY 2013 to 2018.  The 0 AF annual 
production limit is specified in the Seaside Basin Adjudication Decision and is subject to change.
3.   It should be noted that, the tri-anniel reduction occurring in WY 2018 reduced the Laguna Seca allocation to 0 
AF, based on recent historical use, actual monthly  use will exceed the proposed monthly  production target.   In this 
context, the production targets represent the maximum monthly production that should occur so that CAW remains 
within its Standard Production Allocation for the Laguna Seca Subarea specified in the Seaside Decision.  
Accordingly , actual production beyond these production targets will be subject to replenishment assessment by  the 
Seaside Basin Watermaster.
4.  "Other" production sources refer to supplies transferred to Laguna Seca Subarea customers from CAW's Carmel 
River sources or water rights acquired from other producers in the Seaside Basin to produce additional water.  For 
example, under emergency conditions, water can be transferred from sources that serve customers in CAW's main 
sy stem, via an existing interconnection, to customers in CAW's Ryan Ranch sy stem.    

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\PublicHearings\12\Item-12-Exh-B.xlsx





EXHIBIT 12-C 
 

Quarterly Water Supply Strategy and Budget Report 
California American Water Main Water Distribution System:  

October – December 2020 
 
 
1. Management Objectives 
 

The Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (District) desires to maximize the 
long-term production potential and protect the environmental quality of the Carmel 
River and Seaside Groundwater Basins. In addition, the District desires to maximize the 
amount of water that can be diverted from the Carmel River Basin and injected into the 
Seaside Groundwater Basin while complying with the instream flow requirements 
recommended by the National Marine Fisheries (NMFS) to protect the Carmel River 
steelhead population. To protect the River, ASR water banked in the winter will 
be recovered in the summer months. To accomplish these goals, a water supply 
strategy and budget for production within California American Water’s (CalAm’s) Main 
and Laguna Seca Subarea water distribution systems is reviewed quarterly to determine the 
optimal strategy for operations, given the current hydrologic and system conditions, and 
legal constraints on the sources and amounts of water to be produced. 

 
2. Quarterly Water Supply Strategy: October - December 2020 
 

On September 5, 2019 staff from the District, CalAm, State Water Resources Control 
Board’s Division of Water Rights (SWRCB-DWR), and the California Department of 
Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) met and discussed the proposed water supply strategy and 
related topics for upcoming quarter. National Marine Fisheries Services (NMFS) was 
unable to attend, but was given to opportunity to provide guidance into the process. 
 
Carmel River Basin CalAm will operate its wells in the Lower Carmel Valley in a 
downstream to upstream sequence, as needed to meet customer demand. For this 
quarterly water budget, it was agreed that CalAm will continue to produce water from the 
Lower Valley Wells as appropriate when in the “Low Flow” regime. To the maximum 
extent, pumping will be shifted away from the river wells and Seaside native water will be 
used to meet the demand in the fall months.  Any new sources of water reduce the water 
available to be pumped from the river on a one to one basis consistent with SBO 2016-
0016.  Upon the first storms, MPWMD and CalAm will cooperate to begin preparation for 
ASR season and when instream flow requirements are met, Carmel River water injection 
will begin.  On December 1st, ASR permits allow for diversion to injection if instream flow 
requirements are met. 
 
Seaside Groundwater Basin CalAm will continue to produce water from the Coastal 
Subareas of the Seaside Basin during this period, as necessary to meet system demand 
and reduce pumping from the Carmel River wells. There is also a goal to produce 25 AF 
of treated brackish groundwater from the Sand City Desalination Plant in each of these 
three months. It is recognized that, based on recent historical use, CalAm’s production 



from the Laguna Seca Subarea during this period cannot be reduced to zero, as is set 
by CalAm’s allocation specified in the Seaside Basin Adjudication Decision. In this 
context, the production targets represent the maximum monthly production that should 
occur so that CalAm remains within its adjudicated allocation for the Laguna Seca 
Subarea. Under the amended Seaside Basin Decision, CalAm is allowed to use production 
savings in the Coastal Subareas to offset over-production in the Laguna Seca Subarea. 
However, the quarterly budget was developed so that CalAm would produce all native 
groundwater in the Coastal Subareas and Laguna Seca production would be over the 
Adjudication allotment. 

 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\PublicHearings\12\Item-12-Exh-C.docx 



ITEM: ACTION ITEM 
 
13. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO 2019-13 AUTHORIZING AN 

AMENDMENT TO MPWMD BOARD MEETING RULE 12 – ESTABLISH 
BOARD MEETING START TIME AS 6 PM 

 
Meeting Date: September 16, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt, Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:       
 
Prepared By: Arlene Tavani Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 
General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  None 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
SUMMARY:  The Board should consider modifying the Regular Board meeting start time from 
7 pm to 6 pm.   A 6 pm start time would allow the Board to conduct its business and adjourn at a 
reasonable hour.  This will benefit both the public and Directors. 
 
The Board can authorize the change by amending MPWMD Board Meeting Rule No. 12 that 
established the start time as 7 pm.   The 6 pm start time would go into effect immediately.  Notice 
of the time change would be emailed the week of September 23 and published on the District’s 
website and social media accounts.  The notice would be repeated the week of October 7.  
 
A survey of 11 local public agencies showed that only two agencies convene at 7 pm.  The City of 
Pacific Grove and Monterey One Water convene at 6 pm.  The other seven agencies meet at various 
times between 9:30 am and 6:30 pm. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution No. 2019-13 (Exhibit 13-A) authorizing an 
amendment to MPWMD Board Meeting Rule No. 12 and establishing the Regular Board meeting 
start time as 6 pm.  
 
EXHIBIT 
13-A Draft Resolution No. 2019-13 – Authorizing an Amendment to MPWMD Board Meeting 

Rule No. 12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\ActionItems\13\Item-13.docx 





 
 
 
 
 

 
 

5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA  93940        P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA  93942-0085 
831-658-5600        Fax  831-644-9560        http://www.mpwmd.net 

 

 
EXHIBIT 13-A 

 
DRAFT  

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-12 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT  

AMEND MEETING RULE 12 
ESTABLISH 6 PM START TIME FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETINGS 

 
WHEREAS, MPWMD Board Meeting Rule 12 specifies that regular Board meetings shall 

commence at 7:00 pm on the third Monday of each month. 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

intends to convene regular Board meetings at 6 pm to allow for adjournment at a reasonable hour that will 
benefit both the public and the Board. 

 
WHEREAS, MPWMD Board Meeting Rule 12 can be amended by resolution of the Board to 

establish a 6 PM start time for regular Board meetings, effective September 17, 2019. 
 
  NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 
We, the Board of Directors of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District, amend 

Board Meeting Rule 12 to state that regular Board meetings shall commence at 6:00 pm on the third 
Monday of each month.   This amendment shall take effect on September 17, 2019. 
 

On motion of Director ________ and second by Director ________, the foregoing resolution  
is duly adopted this 16th day of September 2019 by the following votes:  
 

AYES:  
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  

 
I, David J. Stoldt, Secretary to the Board of Directors on the Monterey Peninsula Water 

Management District, hereby certify that the foregoing is a resolution duly adopted on the 16th day of 
September 2019.  

Witness my hand and seal of the Board of Directors this ____ day of September 2019. 
 
 
 

David J. Stoldt, Secretary to the Board 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\ActionItems\13\Item-13-Exh-A.docx 





ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORTS 
 
14. STATUS REPORT ON MEASURE J/RULE 19.8 SPENDING 
 
Meeting Date: September 16, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
 

Prepared By: Suresh Prasad Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  The Administrative Committee reviewed this item on 
September 9, 2019. 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
SUMMARY:  Attached for review is Exhibit 14-A, monthly status report on Measure J/Rule 
19.8 spending for the period July 2019.  This status report is provided for information only, no 
action is required.  
 
EXHIBIT 
14-A Status on Measure J/Rule 19.8 Spending 
 
 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\InfoItems\14\Item-14.docx 





Contract

Date

Authorized

Contract

Amount

Prior Period

Spending

Current Period

Spending

Total Expended

To Date

Spending

Remaining

Project

No.

1 Eminent Domain Legal Counsel 12/17/2018 100,000.00$         55,040.20$           32,587.50$           87,627.70$           12,372.30$           PA00002‐01

2 Investment Banking Services 2/21/2019 30,000.00$           ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   30,000.00$           PA00002‐02

3 Valuation & Cost of Service Study Consulta 2/21/2019 355,000.00$         125,404.79$         21,838.96$           147,243.75$         207,756.25$         PA00002‐03

4 Investor Owned Utility Consultant 2/21/2019 100,000.00$         35,974.94$           30,512.02$           66,486.96$           33,513.04$           PA00002‐04

5 District Legal Counsel 30,000.00$           18,794.11$           5,904.50$              24,698.61$           5,301.39$              PA00002‐05

6 Contingency/Miscellaneous 35,000.00$           6,070.41$              ‐$   6,070.41$              28,929.59$           PA00002‐10

Total 650,000.00$         241,284.45$         90,842.98$           332,127.43$         317,872.57$        

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

Status on Measure J/Rule 19.8 Spending

For the Period July 2019

U:\mpwmd\Finance\Measure J Status Report 072019.xlsxMeasure J Status Report 072019.xlsx

EXHIBIT 14-A





ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEM/STAFF REPORT 
 
15. LETTERS RECEIVED 
 
Meeting Date: September 16, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
 
Prepared By: Arlene Tavani Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
A list of letters submitted to the Board of Directors or General Manager and received between 
August 10, 2019 and September 10, 2019 is shown below.  The purpose of including a list of 
these letters in the Board packet is to inform the Board and interested citizens. Copies of the 
letters are available for public review at the District office. If a member of the public would like 
to receive a copy of any letter listed, please contact the District office. Reproduction costs will 
be charged. The letters can also be downloaded from the District’s web site at www.mpwmd.net. 
 
Author Addressee Date Topic 

John Moore MPWMD  9/3/19 Pine Cone Editorial About Drinking Water 

John Moore MPWMD 8/23/19 Drinking Water Notification Levels Issued for 
PFOA and PFOS 

Ken Dursa MPWMD 8/19/19 Assistance for low income wastewater and water 
customers 

Michele Mark 
Levine 

MPWMD 8/7/19 Qualified for GFOA Certificate of Achievement 
for Excellence in Financial Reporting 

 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\InfoItems\15\Item-15.docx 

 

http://www.mpwmd.net/




 
 

ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEM/STAFF REPORT 
 
16. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Meeting Date: September 16, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
 
Prepared By: Arlene Tavani Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
Attached for your review as Exhibits 16-A and 16-B, respectively, are final minutes of the 
committee meetings listed below. 
 
EXHIBIT 
16-A August 12, 2019 Administrative Committee Minutes 
16-B July 9, 2019 Water Supply Planning Committee Minutes 
  
  

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\InfoItems\16\Item-16.docx 

 
 
 
 
 
 





 
 
 
 
 

 
5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA  93940        P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA  93942-0085 

831-658-5600        Fax 831-644-9560        http://www.mpwmd.net  
 

 
EXHIBIT 16-A 

 
FINAL MINUTES 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
Administrative Committee 

August 12, 2019 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order at 4:04 PM in the District Conference Room.    
 
Committee members present: George Riley – Chair  
 Molly Evans 
 Gary Hoffmann (participated by telephone) 
      
Staff present: David J. Stoldt, General Manager 
 Stephanie Locke, Water Demand Manger 
 Thomas Christensen, Environmental Resources Manager 
 Jon Lear, Water Resources Manager 
 Suresh Prasad, Chief Financial Officer/Administrative Services Manager 
 Kevan Urquhart, Senior Fisheries Biologist 
 Maureen Hamilton, Water Resources Engineer 
 Sara Reyes, Sr. Office Specialist 
 
Oral Communications 
None 
 
Items on Board Agenda for August 19, 2019 
 
1. Consider Adoption of Minutes of July 8, 2019 Committee Meeting 

On a motion by Evans and second by Riley, the minutes of the July 8, 2019 meeting were approved 
on a vote of  2– 0 by Evans and Riley.  Director Hoffman abstained from voting due to his absence at 
the July 8, 2019 Committee meeting.  

 
2. Consider Expenditure for Updates to Gardensoft Waterwise Gardening Software 

On a motion by Evans and second by Riley, the committee voted to recommend the Board approve 
the modernization upgrades and fact sheets for a not-to-exceed expenditure of $4,650.  The motion 
was approved on a vote of 3 – 0 by Evans, Riley and Hoffman.  

 
3. Consider Approval of Additional expenditure to Right on Q Hydrogeology (Michael Hutnak) 

for Technical Support for the Carmel River Basin Hydrologic Model 
The committee unanimously agreed to present this item to the full Board for discussion as an Action 
Item on the August 12, 2019 Board agenda. No action was taken by the committee.   
 

4. Consider Expenditure to Contract for Completion of Annual Carmel River Survey (Exempt 
from CEQA – Section 15306) 
On a motion by Evans and second by Hoffman, the committee voted to recommend the Board 
authorize the General Manager to enter into an agreement with the University Foundation at CSUMB 

http://www.mpwmd.net/


Final Minutes – MPWMD Administrative Committee – August 12, 2019 

 
  

for a not-to-exceed amount of $24,839.  The motion was approved on a vote of  3 – 0 by Evans, 
Hoffman and Riley.  
 

5. Consider Augmenting Expenditures for Permitting of a New Carmel River Fish Counting Weir 
(Exempt under CEQA Guildelines Section 15306 and 15378) 
On a motion by Evans and second by Riley, the committee voted to recommend the Board (1) approve 
an expenditure of $3,288.75 for the CDFW LSAA five-year permit fee that increased in 2019; (2) 
authorize the General Manager to augment and extend an existing agreement with Denise Duffy & 
Associates for a not-to-exceed additional amount of $5,000 for assistance with remaining permit 
acquisition; and (3) include a $1,711.25 contingency for a total expenditure of $10,000.  The motion 
was approved on a vote of  3 – 0 by Evans, Riley and Hoffmann. 
 

6. Consider Expenditure for Pre-Purchase of Materials Necessary to Construct Santa Margarita 
Disinfection Facilities 
On a motion by Riley and second by Evans, the committee voted to recommend the Board  (1) Make 
a finding under Public Contract Code Section 3400 (c) (2) and (3) that the materials to be purchased 
under this authorization are required in order to match other products in use within the Cal-Am system 
and that the necessary materials are available from one source; (2) Authorize the General Manager to 
enter into a contract with Hopkins Technical Products, Inc. to purchase chemical feed systems for the 
amount of $80,469.28, with a 10% contingency for delivery, offloading, and/or storage to be 
authorized by MPWMD staff, for a total amount not-to-exceed (NTE) $88,516.  The motion was 
approved on a vote of 2 – 1 by Riley and Evans.  Director Hoffmann voted against the motion.  The 
motion included requests for additional information from staff in the report to be presented to the 
Board at the August 19, 2019 meeting. 
 

6A. Consider Expenditure for the Santa Margarita Water Disinfection Facilities Construction 
Management Services 

 On a motion by Evans and second by Riley, the committee voted to recommend this item be placed 
on the August 19, 2019 as an Action Item and with additional information from staff.  The motion was 
approved on a vote of of 3 – 0 by Evans, Riley and Hoffmann. 

 
7. Status Report on Measure J/Rule 19.8 Spending 

This item was presented as information to the committee.  No action was required or taken by the 
committee. 
 

8. Review Fourth Quarter Legal Services Activity Report for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 
This item was presented as information to the committee.  No action was required or taken by the 
committee. 
 

9. Review Draft August 19, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Agenda 
A revised draft agenda was submitted to the committee for review.  No changes were made by the  
committee. 
 

Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:03 PM.   
 
 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\InfoItems\16\Item-16-Exh-A.docx 



 
 
 
 
 

 
5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA  93940        P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA  93942-0085 

831-658-5600        Fax  831-644-9560        http://www.mpwmd.net  
 

 
 EXHIBIT 16-B 

 
 FINAL MINUTES 

 

Water Supply Planning Committee of the 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

July 9, 2019 
   

Call to Order: The meeting was called to order at 10:00 am. 
 
Committee members present: Gary Hoffmann, P.E. (participated by telephone)   

 Jeanne Byrne 
 George Riley 
  

Committee members absent: None 
   

Staff members present: David J. Stoldt, General Manager 
 Larry Hampson, District Engineer 
 Arlene Tavani, Executive Assistant 
 Stephanie Locke, Water Demand Manager 
 Jonathan Lear, Water Resources Division Manager 
 Thomas Christensen, Environmental Resources Div. Mgr. 
   

District Counsel present David Laredo  
   

Comments from the Public:  Paul Bruno came forward to comment on California-American 
Water’s desalination project, but agreed to speak under agenda item 4.  
 
Action Items  
1. Consider Adoption of March 28, 2019 Committee Meeting Minutes 
 On a motion by Riley and second of Hoffmann, the minutes were approved on a 

unanimous vote of 3 – 0 by Riley, Hoffmann and Byrne. 
  
Discussion Items 
2. Update on Status of Ryan Ranch Unit of California American Water and Use of 

Emergency Intertie between the Bishop and Ryan Ranch Units 
 General Manager Stoldt distributed an email dated July 8, 2019 from Tim O’Halloran 

of California American Water (CAW) outlining a plan to implement the Ryan Ranch-
Bishop interconnection as contemplated in the Monterey Peninsula Water Supply 
Project EIR to meet the water needs of the Ryan Ranch system.  The committee 
discussed the plan and agreed with staff’s assessment that it would be preferable to 
support CAW’s plan to implement the Ryan Ranch-Bishop interconnection which 
would be completed by April 2020, rather than require CAW to pursue the lengthy 
process to amend the Ryan Ranch Water Distribution System permit. 
 

http://www.mpwmd.net/


Final Minutes – July 9, 2019, Water Supply Planning Committee Meeting -- Page 2 of 3 
 

 
  

John Tilley addressed the committee during the public comment period on this item. 
He highlighted the importance of redundancy within the water system; the peak 
maximum daily demand needs must be met; and satellite systems do not work without 
a water supply project. 
 
During the discussion, staff acknowledged that CAW may need to utilize its 
interconnection with the Bishop or main CAW system during construction of the new 
Bishop interconnection.  It was noted that the District chose not to pursue enforcement 
procedures against CAW when it was known that the company was out of compliance 
with its Water Distribution System permit.  There was concern that the lack of 
enforcement sent a signal to others that the District would not enforce its rules.  

  
3. Discussion of Pure Water Monterey Advanced Water Purification Electrical 

Facilities 
 Stoldt summarized the information provided in the staff note and responded to 

questions.  He stated that the cost of the design change to provide power from 
Monterey Regional Waste Management District to the Advanced Water Purification 
Facilities without the need to change the existing PG&E Meter and Switchgear will be 
offset by reduced power costs over a 30-year period.  

  
4. Update on Pure Water Monterey Project; Discuss Pure Water Monterey 

Expansion’s Role in Water Supply Portfolio 
 Riley stated that the topic was presented at his request.  The purpose was not to ask 

the committee to establish priorities or take any action, but to promote a discussion on 
principles, priorities, and cost related to development of PWM and desalination. He 
described the District’s support of both projects as mission creep. He explained that 
the District supported the financing agreement for the desalination project, and took 
action to support funding for Pure Water Monterey (PWM).  PWM complies with 
sustainability priorities of the District and State and should be supported.  PWM is 
less costly than desalination, with fewer environmental impacts.  The desalination 
project was originally proposed as a no-growth project, but had been approved with 
growth mentioned in the mission statement. The desalination project as designed splits 
the community.  A regional desalination project would be preferable to CAW’s 
desalination project. 
 
Byrne opined that there was no issue between the two projects.  The source water for 
PWM is not guaranteed due to increased water conservation and improvements in 
agricultural water use practices.  PWM is not a permanent solution; it is a short term 
20-30 year solution.  Desalination is a long term 50-100 year solution.  The State is 
requiring every city to develop additional housing.  If the original desalination project 
would only provide water for lots of record, infill, and return of the economy it would 
not provide water for the new housing requirements.   
 
Hoffmann stated that PWM and the desalination project are components of the long-
term solution and are not mutually exclusive.    The District should not revisit the 
settlement agreement.  Funding for both projects is available from State Revolving 
Fund loans.  It is important to maximize water reuse before creating a new water 
supply and taxing overused resources that are highly energy intensive. He questioned 



Final Minutes – July 9, 2019, Water Supply Planning Committee Meeting -- Page 3 of 3 
 

 
  

to what extent expansion of PWM would be viable in the long-term. He expressed 
concern about CAW’s ability to reliably operate the desalination plant.  Processes for 
potable reuse have improved over time, and the project should be reevaluated in order 
to develop a more comprehensive position consistent with the settlement agreement. 
 
Public Comment:  (a) Sam Teal stated that the District should remain on the same 
path, as there was no reason to withdraw support of desalination.  (b) Kevin Dayton, 
Government Affairs Director for the Monterey Peninsula Chamber of Commerce, 
recommended that this discussion be conducted in a venue that would accommodate a 
large group of community members who could express their opinion. (c) Jeff Davi 
urged the District to continue its support of desalination.  PWM expansion was 
intended as a back-up plan.  Another public forum for this issue was not needed – the 
topic had been discussed. (d) Paul Bruno urged the committee to refrain from 
moving this discussion forward.  The settlement agreement should remain in place. 
PWM and the expansion proposal would not meet peak demand without desalination, 
nor would PWM meet the needs of the Seaside Basin. (e) John Tilley, rate payer, 
stated that the desalination plant would be a sustainable project, with PWM as a 
supplement. He inferred that the issue was about Measure J, which he said should be 
decided through the feasibility study, not in discussions about the water supply 
project. 
 
Stoldt stated that peak demand in the system can be met without a desalination project 
for ten years.  He noted that funding from Clean Water State Revolving Fund loans 
and Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund loans could provide full funding for 
the desalination project; however, the State had not yet submitted a letter confirming 
its intent to fully fund the project.  Until then, the plan is that some construction costs 
would be paid by a surcharge, 20% shareholder equity from CAW, and the remainder 
from State Revolving Fund loans.   

  
5. Update on Los Padres Dam Alternatives Study 
 Larry Hampson reported that the calibrated model and scenarios to be studied in the 

alternatives study have been approved, including simulation of what the watershed 
was like prior to any European influences in the water shed. It could take 6 – 8 weeks 
to prepare the data for review by the consults who will assess the data to determine 
how the steelhead would be affected under different scenarios. 

  
6. Update on ASR Construction 
 Stoldt reported that chemical building design was nearly complete, and CEQA 

approval would be presented to the Board in July.  When the building is constructed, 
the site will be landscaped.  

  
Adjournment:  The meeting was adjourned at 5:20 pm. 
 
 
 

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\InfoItems\16\Item-16-Exh-B.docxx 

 





ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEM/STAFF REPORTS 
 
17. MONTHLY ALLOCATION REPORT 
 
Meeting Date: September 16, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program:  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.: 
 

Prepared By: Gabriela Bravo Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines section 15378. 
 
SUMMARY: As of August 31, 2019, a total of 19.696 acre-feet (5.7%) of the Paralta Well 
Allocation remained available for use by the Jurisdictions.  Pre-Paralta water in the amount of 
35.923 acre-feet is available to the Jurisdictions, and 28.849 acre-feet is available as public water 
credits. 

  
Exhibit 17-A shows the amount of water allocated to each Jurisdiction from the Paralta Well 
Allocation, the quantities permitted in August 2019 (“changes”), and the quantities remaining.  
The Paralta Allocation had no debits in August 2019. 

 
Exhibit 17-A also shows additional water available to each of the Jurisdictions and the information 
regarding the Community Hospital of the Monterey Peninsula (Holman Highway Facility).  
Additional water from expired or canceled permits that were issued before January 1991 are shown 
under “PRE-Paralta.”  Water credits used from a Jurisdiction’s “public credit” account are also 
listed.  Transfers of Non-Residential Water Use Credits into a Jurisdiction’s Allocation are 
included as “public credits.”  Exhibit 17-B shows water available to Pebble Beach Company and 
Del Monte Forest Benefited Properties, including Macomber Estates, Griffin Trust. Another table 
in this exhibit shows the status of Sand City Water Entitlement and the Malpaso Water Entitlement. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The District’s Water Allocation Program, associated resource system supply 
limits, and Jurisdictional Allocations have been modified by a number of key ordinances.  These 
key ordinances are listed in Exhibit 17-C. 
 
EXHIBITS 
17-A Monthly Allocation Report 
17-B Monthly Entitlement Report 
17-C District’s Water Allocation Program Ordinances 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\InfoItems\17\Item-17.docx 





  

 
EXHIBIT 17-A 

MONTHLY ALLOCATION REPORT 
Reported in Acre-Feet 

For the month of August 2019 
 
 

 

  

 

 
* Does not include 15.280 Acre-Feet from the District Reserve prior to adoption of Ordinance No. 73. 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\InfoItems\17\Item-17-Exh-A.docx 

 
Jurisdiction 

 
Paralta 

Allocation* 

 
Changes 

 
Remaining 

 
PRE- 

Paralta 
Credits 

 
Changes 

 
Remaining 

 
Public 
Credits 

 
Changes 

 
Remaining 

 
Total  

Available 

 
Airport District 

 
8.100 

 
 0.000 

 
5.197 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
5.197 

 
Carmel-by-the-Sea 

 
19.410 

 
0.000 

 
1.398 

 
1.081 

 
0.000 

 
1.081 

 
0.910 

 
0.000 

 
0.182 

 
2.661 

 
Del Rey Oaks 

 
8.100 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.440 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
Monterey 

 
76.320 

 
0.000 

 
0.235 

 
50.659 

 
0.000 

 
0.030 

 
38.121 

 
0.000 

 
2.300 

 
2.565 

 
Monterey County 

 
87.710 

 
0.000 

 
10.717 

 
13.080 

 
0.000 

 
0.352 

 
7.827 

 
0.000 

 
1.775 

 
12.844 

 
Pacific Grove 

 
25.770 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
1.410 

 
0.000 

 
0.022 

 
15.874 

 
0.058 

 
0.075 

 
0.097 

 
Sand City 

 
51.860 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.838 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
24.717 

 
0.000 

 
23.373 

 
23.373 

 
Seaside 

 
65.450 

 
0.000 

 
2.149 

 
34.438 

 
0.000 

 
34.438 

 
2.693 

 
0.000 

 
1.144 

 
37.731 

 
TOTALS 

 
342.720 

 
0.000 

 
19.696 

 
101.946 

 
0.000 

 
35.923 

 
90.142 

 
0.058 

 
28.849 

 
84.468 

 
Allocation Holder 

 
Water Available 

 
Changes this Month 

 
Total Demand from Water 

Permits Issued 

 
Remaining Water 

Available 

 
Quail Meadows 

 
33.000 

 
0.000 

 
32.320 

 
0.680 

 
Water West 

 
12.760 

 
 0.000 

 
9.350 

 
3.410 





EXHIBIT 17-B 
MONTHLY ALLOCATION REPORT 

ENTITLEMENTS 
Reported in Acre-Feet 

For the month of August 2019 
 

Recycled Water Project Entitlements  
 

Entitlement Holder 
 

Entitlement 
 

 
Changes this Month 

 
Total Demand from Water 

Permits Issued 

 
Remaining Entitlement/and 

Water Use Permits Available 

 
Pebble Beach Co. 1 

 
222.000 

 
0.000 

 
31.431 

 
190.569 

 
Del Monte Forest Benefited 

Properties 2 
(Pursuant to Ord No. 109) 

 
143.000 

 
0.049 Credit 

 
  55.031 

 

 
87.969 

 
Macomber Estates 

 
10.000 

 
0.000 

 
10.000 

  
0.000 

 
Griffin Trust 

 
5.000 

 
0.000 

 
4.829 

 
0.171 

CAWD/PBCSD Project 
Totals 

380.000 0.049 Credit 101.291 278.709 

 
 

Entitlement Holder 
 

Entitlement 
 

 
Changes this Month 

 
Total Demand from Water 

Permits Issued 

 
Remaining Entitlement/and 

Water Use Permits Available 

 
City of Sand City 

 
206.000 

 
0.000 

 
5.053 

 
200.947 

 
Malpaso Water Company 

 
80.000 

 
0.441 

 
13.706 

 
66.294 

 
D.B.O. Development No. 30 

 
13.950 

 
0.000 

 
1.125 

 
12.825 

 
City of Pacific Grove 

 
35.990 

 
0.021 

 
0.021 

 
35.969 

Cypress Pacific  
3.170 

 
0.000 

 
3.170 

 
0.000 

 
                                                 
Increases in the Del Monte Forest Benefited Properties Entitlement will result in reductions in the Pebble Beach Co. Entitlement.              U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\InfoItems\17\Item-17-Exh-B.docx 





EXHIBIT 17-C 
  

District’s Water Allocation Program Ordinances 
  

Ordinance No. 1 was adopted in September 1980 to establish interim municipal water allocations 
based on existing water use by the jurisdictions.  Resolution 81-7 was adopted in April 1981 to 
modify the interim allocations and incorporate projected water demands through the year 2000.  
Under the 1981 allocation, Cal-Am’s annual production limit was set at 20,000 acre-feet. 
  
Ordinance No. 52 was adopted in December 1990 to implement the District’s water allocation 
program, modify the resource system supply limit, and to temporarily limit new uses of water.  As a 
result of Ordinance No. 52, a moratorium on the issuance of most water permits within the District 
was established.  Adoption of Ordinance No. 52 reduced Cal-Am’s annual production limit to 
16,744 acre-feet. 
  
Ordinance No. 70 was adopted in June 1993 to modify the resource system supply limit, establish a 
water allocation for each of the jurisdictions within the District, and end the moratorium on the 
issuance of water permits.  Adoption of Ordinance No. 70 was based on development of the Paralta 
Well in the Seaside Groundwater Basin and increased Cal-Am’s annual production limit to 17,619 
acre-feet.  More specifically, Ordinance No. 70 allocated 308 acre-feet of water to the jurisdictions 
and 50 acre-feet to a District Reserve for regional projects with public benefit. 
  
Ordinance No. 73 was adopted in February 1995 to eliminate the District Reserve and allocate the 
remaining water equally among the eight jurisdictions.  Of the original 50 acre-feet that was 
allocated to the District Reserve, 34.72 acre-feet remained and was distributed equally (4.34 acre-
feet) among the jurisdictions. 
  
Ordinance No. 74 was adopted in March 1995 to allow the reinvestment of toilet retrofit water 
savings on single-family residential properties.  The reinvested retrofit credits must be repaid by the 
jurisdiction from the next available water allocation and are limited to a maximum of 10 acre-feet.  
This ordinance sunset in July 1998.   
  
Ordinance No. 75 was adopted in March 1995 to allow the reinvestment of water saved through 
toilet retrofits and other permanent water savings methods at publicly owned and operated facilities.  
Fifteen percent of the savings are set aside to meet the District’s long-term water conservation goal 
and the remainder of the savings are credited to the jurisdictions allocation.  This ordinance sunset 
in July 1998.  
  
Ordinance No. 83 was adopted in April 1996 and set Cal-Am’s annual production limit at 17,621 
acre-feet and the non-Cal-Am annual production limit at 3,046 acre-feet.  The modifications to the 
production limit were made based on the agreement by non-Cal-Am water users to permanently 
reduce annual water production from the Carmel Valley Alluvial Aquifer in exchange for water 
service from Cal-Am.  As part of the agreement, fifteen percent of the historical non-Cal-Am 
production was set aside to meet the District’s long-term water conservation goal. 
  



Ordinance No. 87 was adopted in February 1997 as an urgency ordinance establishing a 
community benefit allocation for the planned expansion of the Community Hospital of the 
Monterey Peninsula (CHOMP).  Specifically, a special reserve allocation of 19.60 acre-feet of 
production was created exclusively for the benefit of CHOMP.  With this new allocation, Cal-Am’s 
annual production limit was increased to 17,641 acre-feet and the non-Cal-Am annual production 
limit remained at 3,046 acre-feet. 
  
Ordinance No. 90 was adopted in June 1998 to continue the program allowing the reinvestment of 
toilet retrofit water savings on single-family residential properties for 90-days following the 
expiration of Ordinance No. 74.  This ordinance sunset in September 1998. 
  
Ordinance No. 91 was adopted in June 1998 to continue the program allowing the reinvestment of 
water saved through toilet retrofits and other permanent water savings methods at publicly owned 
and operated facilities.   
  
Ordinance No. 90 and No. 91 were challenged for compliance with CEQA and nullified by the 
Monterey Superior Court in December 1998. 
  
Ordinance No. 109 was adopted on May 27, 2004, revised Rule 23.5 and adopted additional 
provisions to facilitate the financing and expansion of the CAWD/PBCSD Recycled Water Project. 
 
Ordinance No. 132 was adopted on January 24, 2008, established a Water Entitlement for Sand 
City and amended the rules to reflect the process for issuing Water Use Permits.  
 
Ordinance No. 165 was adopted on August 17, 2015, established a Water Entitlement for Malpaso 
Water Company and amended the rules to reflect the process for issuing Water Use Permits. 
 
Ordinance No. 166 was adopted on December 15, 2015, established a Water Entitlement for 
D.B.O. Development No. 30. 
 
Ordinance No. 168 was adopted on January 27, 2016, established a Water Entitlement for the City 
of Pacific Grove. 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\InfoItems\17\Item-17-Exh-C.docx 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEM/STAFF REPORTS  
 
18. WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM REPORT   
 
Meeting Date: September 16, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
 

Prepared By: Kyle Smith Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 

I. MANDATORY WATER CONSERVATION RETROFIT PROGRAM 
District Regulation XIV requires the retrofit of water fixtures upon Change of Ownership or 
Use with High Efficiency Toilets (HET) (1.28 gallons-per-flush), 2.0 gallons-per-minute 
(gpm) Showerheads, 1.2 gpm Washbasin faucets, 1.8 gpm kitchen, utility and bar sink faucets, 
and Rain Sensors on all automatic Irrigation Systems.  Property owners must certify the Site 
meets the District’s water efficiency standards by submitting a Water Conservation 
Certification Form (WCC), and a Site inspection is often conducted to verify compliance.   

 
A. Changes of Ownership 

Information is obtained monthly from Realquest.com on properties transferring ownership 
within the District.  The information is compared against the properties that have submitted 
WCCs.  Details on 119 property transfers that occurred between August 1, 2019, and 
August 31, 2019, were added to the database.      
 

B. Certification  
The District received 536 WCCs between March 1, 2019, and August 31, 2019.  Data on 
ownership, transfer date, and status of water efficiency standard compliance were entered 
into the database. 

 
C. Verification 

From August 1, 2019, to August 31, 2019, 96 properties were verified compliant with Rule 
144 (Retrofit Upon Change of Ownership or Use).  Of the 96 verifications, 56 properties 
verified compliance by submitting certification forms and/or receipts.  District staff 
completed 59 Site inspections.  Of the 59 properties inspected, 40 (67%) passed inspection. 
None of the properties that passed inspection involved more than one visit to verify 
compliance with all water efficiency standards.  

 
Savings Estimate 
Water savings from HET retrofits triggered by Rule 144 verified from August 1, 2019, to 
August 31, 2019, are estimated at 0.660 Acre-Feet Annually (AFA). Water savings from 
retrofits that exceeded the requirement (i.e., HETs to Ultra High Efficiency Toilets) is 



estimated at 0.030 AFA (8 toilets).  Year-to-date estimated savings from toilet retrofits is 
5.190 AFA. 

 
D. CII Compliance with Water Efficiency Standards 

Effective January 1, 2014, all Non-Residential properties were required to meet Rule 143, 
Water Efficiency Standards for Existing Non-Residential Uses. To verify compliance with 
these requirements, property owners and businesses are being sent notification of the 
requirements and a date that inspectors will be on Site to check the property.  In July, 
District inspectors performed eight inspections.  Of the eight inspections certified, seven 
were in compliance.  Two of the properties that passed inspection involved more than one 
visit to verify compliance with all water efficiency standards; the remainder complied 
without a reinspection.  

 
MPWMD is forwarding its CII inspection findings to California American Water (Cal-
Am) for their verification with the Rate Best Management Practices (Rate BMPs) that are 
used to determine the appropriate non-residential rate division.  Compliance with 
MPWMD’s Rule 143 achieves Rate BMPs for indoor water uses, however, properties with 
landscaping must also comply with Cal-Am’s outdoor Rate BMPs to avoid Division 4 
(Non-Rate BMP Compliant) rates.  In addition to sharing information about indoor Rate 
BMP compliance, MPWMD notifies Cal-Am of properties with landscaping.  Cal-Am then 
conducts an outdoor audit to verify compliance with the Rate BMPs.  During July 2019, 
MPWMD referred three properties to Cal-Am for verification of outdoor Rate BMPs. 

 
E. Water Waste Enforcement 

The District has a Water Waste Hotline 831-658-5653 or an online form to report Water 
Waster occurrences at www.mpwmd.net or www.montereywaterinfo.org. There were 
eight Water Waste responses during the past month. There were no repeated incidents that 
resulted in a fine.  
 

II. WATER DEMAND MANAGEMENT 
 

A. Permit Processing 
District Rule 23 requires a Water Permit application for all properties that propose to 
expand or modify water use on a Site, including New Construction and Remodels.  District 
staff processed and issued 228 Water Permits from May 1, 2019 to August 31, 2019.  
Thirty-one Water Permits were issued using Water Entitlements (Pebble Beach Company, 
Malpaso Water, etc.).  Two Water Permits involved a debit to a Public Water Credit 
Account.   
 
All Water Permits have a disclaimer informing applicants of the Cease and Desist Order 
against California American Water and that MPWMD reports Water Permit details to 
California American Water.  All Water Permit recipients with property supplied by a 
California American Water Distribution System will continue to be provided with the 
disclaimer. 
 

http://www.mpwmd.net/
http://www.montereywaterinfo.org/


District Rule 24-3-A allows the addition of a second bathroom in an existing Single-Family 
Dwelling on a Single-Family Residential Site. Of the 228 Water Permits issued from May 
1, 2019 to August 31, 2019, 17 were issued under this provision. 

 
 
B. Permit Compliance   

District staff completed 53 Water Permit final inspections during August 2019.  Four of 
the final inspections failed due to unpermitted fixtures.  Of the 39 passing properties, 29 
passed inspection on the first visit. In addition, four pre-inspections were conducted in 
response to Water Permit applications received by the District. 

 
C. Deed Restrictions 

District staff prepares deed restrictions that are recorded on the property title to provide 
notice of District Rules and Regulations, enforce Water Permit conditions, and provide 
notice of public access to water records.  In April 2001, the District Board of Directors 
adopted a policy regarding the processing of deed restrictions.  Staff is unable to report on 
the number of deed restriction as it relates to total number of Permits for August.  District 
staff provided Notary services for 27 Water Permits with deed restrictions.  

 
D. Rebates 

Rebate data was unavailable for this month’s report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\InfoItems\18\Item-18.docx 





ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORTS 
 
19. CARMEL RIVER FISHERY REPORT FOR AUGUST 2019 
 
Meeting Date: September 16, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
   
Prepared By: Beverly Chaney Cost Estimate:  N/A 

 
General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
AQUATIC HABITAT AND FLOW CONDITIONS:  Carmel River flows dropped slightly in 
August but remained above typical summer levels, providing good to fair rearing conditions for 
steelhead young-of-the-year (YOY) throughout much of the watershed. 
  
August’s mean daily streamflow at the Sleepy Hollow Weir dropped from 20 to 15 cubic-feet-per-
second (cfs) (monthly mean 17.3 cfs) resulting in 1,060 acre-feet (AF) of runoff. Mean daily 
streamflow at the Highway 1 gage dropped from 7.2 to 4.7 cfs (monthly mean 5.8 cfs) resulting in 
357 acre-feet (AF) of runoff. Los Padres Dam stopped spilling on August 5th, but ~14 cfs are being 
released through the dam’s outlet works. A problem with the outlet pipe occurred mid-month due 
to the large landslide in the reservoir when the pipe became partially blocked with debris.  The 
issue was resolved a few days later by divers in the reservoir but the situation needs to be closely 
monitored.  

There were 0.00 inches of rainfall in August as recorded at the San Clemente gauge. The rainfall 
total for WY 2019 (which started on October 1, 2018) is 30.93 inches, or 146% of the long-term 
year-to-date average of 21.15 inches.  

CARMEL RIVER LAGOON:  The lagoon mouth was closed by Monterey County crews on 
July 10, 2019 by pushing beach sand across the western side of the lagoon. In August, the water 
surface elevation (WSE) held steady between ~10.2 to 10.5 feet (North American Vertical Datum 
of 1988; NAVD 88) (see graph below) providing important additional summer habitat. 
 
Water quality depth-profiles were conducted at five sites on August 19, 2019 while the lagoon 
mouth was closed, the water surface elevation was ~10.25 feet, and river inflow was 5.3 cfs. 
Steelhead rearing conditions were generally “fair” throughout the lagoon, salinity was <1 ppt down 
to 2.5 m depth in the south arm, dissolved oxygen (DO) levels were variable from 1 - 10 mg/l, and 
water temperatures remained between 68 - 73 degrees F.  
 
TRIBUTARIES STEELHEAD RESCUES:  Staff began fish rescues in the tributaries in early 
May. As of August 31, a total of 15,013 fish has been rescued, including: 14,933 young-of-the-



year (YOY), 23 age 1+ fish, with 57 mortalities (0.4%). The majority of the fish have been rescued 
from Hitchcock Creek (3,114) and Cachagua Creek (9,714). 
 
MAINSTEM STEELHEAD RESCUES:  No rescues have been needed this year in the 
mainstem due to higher than usual summer flows. Staff continues to monitor the conditions. 
 
SLEEPY HOLLOW STEELHEAD REARING FACILITY:  General contractor Mercer-
Fraser Company of Eureka, CA, was hired for the Intake Upgrade Project and started construction 
in September 2018 on the $2 million project. The main features of the project include installing a 
new intake structure that can withstand flood and drought conditions as well as the increased 
bedload from the San Clemente Dam removal project, and a new Recirculating Aquaculture 
System (RAS) that can be operated in times of low flow or high turbidity to keep the fish healthy.  
 
During July and August 2019, the project moved towards completion with the construction of the 
RAS building, including the installation of the plumbing and components (drum filters, UV 
sterilizer, sump tank, and electrical) and installation of the degassing/oxygenation system. 
Telemetrix Co. of Marina was hired to setup the monitoring and alarm systems. 
 
SPAWNING GRAVEL ENHANCEMENT PROJECT AT LOS PADRES:  The District is 
currently partnering with Cal-Am Water to complete another round of spawning gravel 
enhancement below Los Padres Dam. Cal-Am is funding the purchase and placement of 1,000 tons 
of 1.5-4” river-run gravel, while the District obtained the required permits, and is providing the 
project expertise, onsite project management and reporting, and the required Approved Biologist 
for the federal permits.  
 
Natural gravel is now trapped behind the dam causing the substrate downstream to become too 
coarse for adult steelhead to spawn in.  The 1,500 tons of 1.5 – 4 inch gravel placed by the District 
in 2014 was very successful in providing crucial spawning habitat in the Cachagua area. As that 
material moves downstream each winter additional material needs to be placed upstream to keep 
the reach seeded. With the addition of 1,000 tons of gravel in 2019 and another 1,000 tons in 2020, 
we hope to the increase available spawning habitat and continue the upward trend in steelhead 
spawning success in the upper Carmel River. Permitting was completed in July 2019 and gravel 
deliveries were completed over two weeks in August (see photo below). Staff plans to begin gravel 
placement in mid-September. 
  
This year’s project continues the 26-year Spawning Gravel Enhancement Program started by the 
District in 1993. With the completion of the this year’s project, the District will have placed 
approximately 5,900 tons of gravel between Los Padres Dam and Sleepy Hollow, downstream of 
San Clemente Dam. 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

 

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\InfoItems\19\Item-19.docx 





 

 
Exhibit 20-A shows the water supply status for the Monterey Peninsula Water Resources System 
(MPWRS) as of September 1, 2019.  This system includes the surface water resources in the Carmel 
River Basin, the groundwater resources in the Carmel Valley Alluvial Aquifer and the Seaside 
Groundwater Basin.  Exhibit 20-A is for Water Year (WY) 2019 and focuses on four factors: rainfall, 
runoff, and storage.  The rainfall and Streamflow values are based on measurements in the upper Carmel 
River Basin at Sleepy Hollow Weir.   

 
Water Supply Status:  Rainfall through August 2019 totaled 0 inches and brings the cumulative rainfall 
total for WY 2019 to 30.93 inches, which is 146% of the long-term average through August.  Estimated 
unimpaired runoff through August totaled 926 acre-feet (AF) and brings the cumulative runoff total for 
WY 2019 to 145,217 AF, which is 216% of the long-term average through August.  Usable storage for 
the MRWPRS was 29,130 acre-feet, which is 97% of average through August, and equates to 78% 
percent of system capacity   
 
Production Compliance:  Under State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) Cease and Desist 
Order No. 2016-0016 (CDO), California American Water (Cal-Am) is allowed to produce no more than 
8,310 AF of water from the Carmel River in WY 2019.  Through August, using the CDO accounting 
method, Cal-Am has produced 6,834 AF from the Carmel River (including ASR capped at 600 AF, 
Table 13, and Mal Paso.)  In addition, under the Seaside Basin Decision, Cal-Am is allowed to produce 
1,820 AF of water from the Coastal Subareas and 0 AF from the Laguna Seca Subarea of the Seaside 
Basin in WY 2019.  Through August, Cal-Am has produced 1,821 AF from the Seaside Groundwater 
Basin.  Through August, 1,335 AF of Carmel River Basin groundwater have been diverted for Seaside 
Basin injection; 364 AF have been recovered for customer use, and 471 AF have been diverted under 
Table 13 water rights.  Cal-Am has produced 8,825 AF for customer use from all sources through 
August.  Exhibit 20-C shows production by source.  Some of the values in this report may be revised 
in the future as Cal-Am finalizes their production values and monitoring data.  The 12 month moving 
average of production for customer service is 9,746 AF, which is below the rationing trigger of 10,130 
AF for WY 2019. 
 
EXHIBITS 
20-A Water Supply Status: September 1, 2019 
20-B Monthly Cal-Am Diversions from Carmel River and Seaside Groundwater Basins:  WY 2019 
20-C Monthly Cal-Am production by source: WY 2019 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\InfoItems\20\Item-20.docx 

ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORT 
 
20. MONTHLY WATER SUPPLY AND CALIFORNIA AMERICAN WATER 

PRODUCTION REPORT 
 
Meeting Date: September 16, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
   
Prepared By: Jonathan Lear Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  Exempt from environmental review per SWRCB Order Nos. 95-10 and 
2016-0016, and the Seaside Basin Groundwater Basin adjudication decision, as amended and 
Section 15268 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, as a ministerial 
project; Exempt from Section 15307, Actions by Regulatory Agencies for Protection of Natural 
Resources. 





 
 

EXHIBIT 20-A 
 

 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
Water Supply Status 
September 1, 2019 

 
           Factor Oct to Aug 2019  Average 

To Date 
Percent of 
Average 

Oct to Aug 2018  

 
Rainfall 
(Inches) 

30.93 
 

21.15 
 

146% 13.52 
 

 
 Runoff 
 (Acre-Feet) 

145,217 
 

67,086 216% 32,029 
 
 

 
 Storage 5 
 (Acre-Feet) 

30,280 29,130 97% 28,197 
 

      
 
Notes: 
 

1. Rainfall and runoff estimates are based on measurements at San Clemente Dam.  Annual rainfall and runoff at 
Sleepy Hollow Weir average 21.1 inches and 67,246 acre-feet, respectively.  Annual values are based on the water 
year that runs from October 1 to September 30 of the following calendar year.  The rainfall and runoff averages at 
the Sleepy Hollow Weir site are based on records for the 1922-2018 and 1902-2018 periods respectively. 

 
2. The rainfall and runoff totals are based on measurements through the dates referenced in the table.  
 
3. Storage estimates refer to usable storage in the Monterey Peninsula Water Resources System (MPWRS) that 

includes surface water in Los Padres and San Clemente Reservoirs and ground water in the Carmel Valley Alluvial 
Aquifer and in the Coastal Subareas of the Seaside Groundwater Basin.   The storage averages are end-of-month 
values and are based on records for the 1989-2018 period. The storage estimates are end-of-month values for the 
dates referenced in the table. 

 
4. The maximum storage capacity for the MPWRS is currently 37,639 acre-feet.   

 
 

 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\InfoItems\20\Item-20-Exh-A.docx 





EXHIBIT 20-B

(All values in Acre-Feet)

WY 2018 Actual 6,138 2,130 272 2,402 8,540 817 153 175 1,145

1.  This table is current through the date of this report.

2.  For CDO compliance, ASR, Mal Paso, and Table 13 diversions are included in River production per State Board.

3.  Sand City Desal, Table 13, and ASR recovery are also tracked as water resources projects.

4.  To date, 1335 AF and 471 AF have been produced from the River for ASR and Table 13 respectively.
5.  All values are rounded to the nearest Acre-Foot.

6.  For CDO Tracking Purposes, ASR production for injection is capped at 600 AFY.

7.  Table 13 diversions are reported under water rights but counted as production from the River for CDO tracking.

                  

Oct-18 491 369 0 0 16 8 884
Nov-18 456 315 0 0 21 8 801
Dec-18 468 180 0 0 11 8 667
Jan-19 395 161 0 81 19 8 664

Feb-19 363 147 0 91 7 8 616

Mar-19 411 161 0 101 0 8 682
Apr-19 504 156 0 98 0 7 765
May-19 587 143 0 101 11 7 849
Jun-19 721 154 0 0 24 7 905
Jul-19 735 248 0 0 8 6 997

Aug-19 547 50 364 0 28 7 996

Sep-19

Total 5,680 2,083 364 471 144 83 8,825

WY 2018 5,635 2,130 817 153 175 56 8,966
1.  This table is produced as a proxy for customer demand.

2.  Numbers are provisional and are subject to correction.

12 Month Moving Average 
1 9,746 10,130 Rule 160 Production Limit

1.  Average includes production from Carmel River, Seaside Basin, Sand City Desal, and ASR recovery produced for Customer Service.

Total

Rationing Trigger: WY 2019

Monthly Production from all Sources for Customer Service: WY 2019
(All values in Acre-Feet)

Carmel River 

Basin
Seaside Basin ASR Recovery Table 13 Sand City Mal Paso

-683 182 36 -244 131 -77Difference 865 -421 -262

400 227 275 902

364 471 144

Target 7,699 1,400 0 1,400

9798,917

Seca Compliance Recovery City 
3

Year-to-Date

Actual 
4 6,834 1,821 262 2,083

Production vs. CDO and Adjudication to Date: WY 2019

MPWRS Water Projects and Rights

9,099

Sand

Values Basin 
2, 6 Coastal

Carmel Seaside Groundwater Basin
MPWRS 

Total

Water Projects 

and Rights 

Total
River Laguna Ajudication ASR Table 13 

7

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\InfoItems\20\Item-20-Exh-B.xlsx





EXHIBIT 20-C

California American Water Production by Source: Water Year 2019

Actual Anticipated
Acre-Feet 

Compaired to Target Actual Anticipated
Compaired to 

Target

Upper Lower Upper Lower Upper Lower Coastal LagunaSeca Coastal LagunaSeca Coastal LagunaSeca

acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet
Oct-18 0 491 0 550 0 59 341 28 350 0 9 -28 860 900 40 16 25 9
Nov-18 0 456 0 383 0 -73 290 25 350 0 60 -25 771 733 -38 21 25 4
Dec-18 82 386 0 559 -82 173 162 18 100 0 -62 -18 648 659 11 11 25 14
Jan-19 232 515 100 573 -132 58 146 15 100 0 -46 -15 907 773 -134 19 25 6
Feb-19 216 545 100 459 -116 -86 133 14 100 0 -33 -14 908 659 -249 7 25 19
Mar-19 261 623 100 616 -161 -7 145 17 100 0 -45 -17 1046 816 -230 0 25 25
Apr-19 258 626 0 863 -258 237 137 19 100 0 -37 -19 1040 963 -77 0 25 25
May-19 232 560 0 967 -232 407 116 27 100 0 -16 -27 935 1,067 132 11 25 14
Jun-19 201 520 0 973 -201 453 122 32 100 0 -22 -32 875 1,073 198 24 25 1
Jul-19 210 525 0 1,341 -210 816 214 34 100 0 -114 -34 983 1,441 458 8 25 17
Aug-19 0 547 0 944 0 397 380 35 100 0 -280 -35 961 1,044 83 28 25 -3
Sep-19

To Date 1,691 5,795 300 8,228 -1,391 2,433 2,185 262 1,600 0 -585 -262 9,934 10,128 194 144 275 131

Total Production: Water Year 2019

Oct-18 925
Nov-18 758
Dec-18 684
Jan-19 798
Feb-19 684
Mar-19 841
Apr-19 988
May-19 1,092
Jun-19 1,098
Jul-19 1,466
Aug-19 1,069
Sep-19

To Date 10,40310,077 326

899 199
991 475
989 80

1,046 -205
1,040 -52
946 146

659 25
926 -128
914 -230

Actual Anticipated
Acre-Feet Compaired to 

Target

876 49
792 -34

Carmel Valley Wells 1 Seaside Wells 2 Total Wells Sand City Desal

Actual Anticipated 3 Compaired to Target Actual Anticipated Compaired to Target

1.   Carmel Valley Wells include upper and lower valley wells.  Anticipate production from this source includes monthly production volumes associated with SBO 2009‐60, 20808A, and 20808C water rights.  Under these water rights,  
water produced from the Carmel Valley wells is delivered to customers or injected into the Seaside Groundwater Basin for storage.

2.  Seaside wells anticipated production is associated with pumping native Seaside Groundwater (which is regulated by the Seaside Groundwater Basin Adjudication Decision) and recovery of stored ASR water (which is prescribed in a 
MOA between MPWMD , Cal‐Am, California Department of Fish and Game, National Marine Fisheries Service, and as regulated by 20808C water right.

3.   Negative values for Acre‐Feet under target indicates production over targeted value.

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\InfoItems\20\Item-20-Exh-C.xlsx



5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA  93940        P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA  93942‐0085 

831‐658‐5600        Fax  831‐644‐9560        http://www.mpwmd.net  

Supplement to 9/16/2019 
MPWMD Board Packet 

Attached are copies of letters received between August 10, 2019 and September 10, 2019. These 
letters are listed in the September 16, 2019 Board packet under Letters Received. 

Author Addressee Date Topic 

John Moore MPWMD  9/3/19 Pine Cone Editorial About Drinking Water 

John Moore MPWMD 8/23/19 Drinking Water Notification Levels Issued for 
PFOA and PFOS 

Ken Dursa MPWMD 8/19/19 Assistance for low income wastewater and water 
customers 

Michele Mark 
Levine 

MPWMD 8/7/19 Qualified for GFOA Certificate of Achievement 
for Excellence in Financial Reporting 

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190916\LettersRecd\LettersRecd.docx 




















	Sept-16-2019-Board-Mtg-Agenda
	Item-1
	Item-1-Exh-A
	Item-2
	Item-2-Exh-A
	Item-3
	Item-3-Exh-A
	Item-8
	Item-9
	Item-9-Exh-A
	Item-10
	Item-10-Exh-A
	Item-11
	Item-11-Exh-A
	Item-11-Exh-A-Attachment-1
	Item-12
	Item-12-Exh-A
	Item-12-Exh-B
	Item-12-Exh-C
	Item-13
	Item-13-Exh-A
	Item-14
	Item-14-Exh-A
	Item-15
	Item-16
	Item-16-Exh-A
	Item-16-Exh-B
	Item-17
	Item-17-Exh-A
	Item-17-Exh-B
	Item-17-Exh-C
	Item-18
	Item-19
	Item-20
	Item-20-Exh-A
	Item-20-Exh-B
	Item-20-Exh-C
	LettersRecd



